GOVERNMENT OF THE DEMOCRATIC SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF SRI LANKA

Ministry of Health

Primary Healthcare System Strengthening Project

Funded by the World Bank

Selection of service provider for production of 5 short video clips for the promotion of primary healthcare reorganizing activities

CONTRACT No: LK-MHNIM-106298-NC-RFQ

REQUEST FOR BIDS

8th November 2021

03rd Floor of the J R Jayawardene Centre, No. 191, Dharmapala Mawatha, Colombo 07, Sri Lanka

Table of Contents

Part I – Bidding Procedures	1
Section I - Instructions to Bidders	3
Section II - Bid Data Sheet (BDS)	
Section III - Evaluation and Qualification Criteria	
Section IV- Bidding Forms	35
Section V - Eligible Countries	45
Section VI - Fraud and Corruption	47
Part II – Employer's Requirement	49
Section VII - Activity Schedule	
Part III – Conditions of Contract and Contract Forms	54
Section VIII - General Conditions of Contract	55
Section IX - Special Conditions of Contract	73
Section X - Contract Forms	76

Part I – Bidding Procedures

Section I - Instructions to Bidders

Contents

A.	General.	5
	1.	Scope of Bid5
	2.	Source of Funds
	3.	Fraud and Corruption
	4.	Eligible Bidders6
	5.	Qualification of the Bidder
B.	Contents of	of Bidding Document9
	6.	Sections of Bidding Document
	7.	Site Visit
	8.	Clarification of Bidding Document10
	9.	Amendment of Bidding Document10
C.	Preparati	ion of Bids10
	10.	Cost of Bidding
	11.	Language of Bid10
	12.	Documents Comprising the Bid11
	13.	Letter of Bid and Activity Schedule11
	14.	Alternative Bids
	15.	Bid Prices and Discounts
	16.	Currencies of Bid and Payment
	17.	Documents Establishing Conformity of Services
	18.	Documents Establishing the Eligibility and Qualifications of the Bidder13
	19.	Period of Validity of Bids
	20.	Bid Security
	21.	Format and Signing of Bid16
D.	Submissio	on and Opening of Bids16
	22.	Sealing and Marking of Bids17
	23.	Deadline for Submission of Bids17

	24.	Late Bids	17
	25.	Withdrawal, Substitution and Modification of Bids	18
	26.	Bid Opening	18
E. 1	Evaluatio	on and Comparison of Bids	19
	27.	Confidentiality	19
	28.	Clarification of Bids	20
	29.	Deviations, Reservations, and Omissions	20
	30.	Determination of Responsiveness	20
	31.	Nonconformities, Errors and Omissions	21
	32.	Correction of Arithmetical Errors	21
	33.	Conversion to Single Currency	22
	34.	Margin of Preference	22
	35.	Evaluation of Bids	22
	36.	Comparison of Bids	23
	37.	Abnormally Low Bids	23
	38.	Qualification of the Bidder	23
	39.	Employer's Right to Accept Any Bid, and to Reject Any or All Bids	24
	40.	Standstill Period	24
	41.	Notification of Intention to Award	24
F.	Award o	f Contract	24
	42.	Award Criteria	25
	43.	Notification of Award	25
	44.	Debriefing by the Employer	26
	45.	Signing of Contract	26
	46.	Performance Security	26
	47.	Adjudicator	27
	48.	Procurement Related Complaint	27

2. Source of

Funds

Section I - Instructions to Bidders

A. General

1. Scope of Bid	1.1	In connection with the Specific Procurement Notice - Request for		
		Bids (RFB), specified in the Bid Data Sheet (BDS), the Employer, as		
		specified in the BDS, issues this bidding document for the delivery		
		of Non-Consulting Services, as specified in Section VII, Employer's		
		Requirements. The name, identification and number of lots		
		(contracts) of this RFB procurement are specified in the BDS.		

- 1.2 Throughout this bidding document:
 - (a) the term "in writing" means communicated in written form (e.g. by mail, e-mail, fax, including if specified in the BDS, distributed or received through the electronic-procurement system used by the Employer) with proof of receipt;
 - (b) if the context so requires, "singular" means "plural" and vice versa; and
 - (c) "Day" means calendar day, unless otherwise specified as "Business Day". A Business Day is any day that is an official working day of the Borrower. It excludes the Borrower's official public holidays.
- 1.3 The successful Bidder will be expected to complete the performance of the Services by the Intended Completion Date provided **in the BDS**.
- 2.1 The Borrower or Recipient (hereinafter called "Borrower") specified in the BDS has applied for or received financing (hereinafter called "funds") from the International Bank for Reconstruction and Development or the International Development Association (hereinafter called "the Bank") in an amount specified in the BDS, toward the project named in the BDS. The Borrower intends to apply a portion of the funds to eligible payments under the contract for which this bidding document is issued.
 - 2.2 Payment by the Bank will be made only at the request of the Borrower and upon approval by the Bank in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Loan (or other financing) Agreement. The Loan (or other financing) Agreement prohibits a withdrawal from the loan account for the purpose of any payment to persons or entities, or for any import of goods, equipment or materials if such payment or import is prohibited by a decision of the United Nations Security Council taken under Chapter VII of the Charter of the United Nations. No party other than the Borrower shall derive any rights

5

from the Loan (or other financing) Agreement or have any claim to the proceeds of the Loan (or other financing).

3. Fraud and Corruption 3.1 The Bank requires compliance with the Bank's Anti-Corruption Guidelines and its prevailing sanctions policies and procedures as set forth in the WBG's Sanctions Framework, as set forth in Section VI.

- 3.2 In further pursuance of this policy, Bidders shall permit and shall cause their agents (where declared or not), subcontractors, subconsultants, service providers, suppliers, and their personnel, to permit the Bank to inspect all accounts, records and other documents relating to any initial selection process, prequalification process, bid submission, proposal submission and contract performance (in the case of award), and to have them audited by auditors appointed by the Bank.
- **4. Eligible Bidders** 4.1 A Bidder may be a firm that is a private entity, a state-owned entity or institution subject to ITB 4.6, or any combination of such entities in the form of a Joint Venture (JV) under an existing agreement or with the intent to enter into such an agreement supported by a letter of intent. In the case of a joint venture, all members shall be jointly and severally liable for the execution of the entire Contract in accordance with the Contract terms. The JV shall nominate a Representative who shall have the authority to conduct all business for and on behalf of any and all the members of the JV during the Bidding process and, in the event the JV is awarded the Contract, during contract execution. Unless specified in the BDS, there is no limit on the number of members in a JV.
 - 4.2 A Bidder shall not have a conflict of interest. Any Bidder found to have a conflict of interest shall be disqualified. A Bidder may be considered to have a conflict of interest for the purpose of this Bidding process, if the Bidder:
 - (a) directly or indirectly controls, is controlled by or is under common control with another Bidder; or
 - (b) receives or has received any direct or indirect subsidy from another Bidder; or
 - (c) has the same legal representative as another Bidder; or
 - (d) has a relationship with another Bidder, directly or through common third parties, that puts it in a position to influence the Bid of another Bidder, or influence the decisions of the Employer regarding this Bidding process; or

- (e) or any of its affiliates participated as a consultant in the preparation of the Employer's Requirements (including Activities Schedules, Performance Specifications and Drawings) for the Non-Consulting Services that are the subject of the Bid; or
- (f) or any of its affiliates has been hired (or is proposed to be hired) by the Employer or Borrower for the Contract implementation; or
- (g) would be providing goods, works, or non-consulting services resulting from or directly related to consulting services for the preparation or implementation of the project specified in the BDS ITB 2.1 that it provided or were provided by any affiliate that directly or indirectly controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with that firm; or
- (h) has a close business or family relationship with a professional staff of the Borrower (or of the project implementing agency, or of a recipient of a part of the loan) who: (i) are directly or indirectly involved in the preparation of the bidding document or specifications of the contract, and/or the Bid evaluation process of such contract; or (ii) would be involved in the implementation or supervision of such contract unless the conflict stemming from such relationship has been resolved in a manner acceptable to the Bank throughout the procurement process and execution of the Contract.
- 4.3 A firm that is a Bidder (either individually or as a JV member) shall not participate in more than one Bid, except for permitted alternative Bids. This includes participation as a subcontractor. Such participation shall result in the disqualification of all Bids in which the firm is involved. A firm that is not a Bidder or a JV member, may participate as a subcontractor in more than one Bid.
- 4.4 A Bidder may have the nationality of any country, subject to the restrictions pursuant to ITB 4.8. A Bidder shall be deemed to have the nationality of a country if the Bidder is constituted, incorporated or registered in and operates in conformity with the provisions of the laws of that country, as evidenced by its articles of incorporation (or equivalent documents of constitution or association) and its registration documents, as the case may be. This criterion also shall apply to the determination of the nationality of proposed subcontractors or subconsultants for any part of the Contract including related Services.
- 4.5 A Bidder that has been sanctioned by the Bank, pursuant to the Bank's Anti-Corruption Guidelines, and in accordance with its prevailing sanctions policies and procedures as set forth in the

WBG's Sanctions Framework as described in Section VI paragraph 2.2 d., shall be ineligible to be prequalified for, initially selected for, bid for, propose for, or be awarded a Bank-financed contract or benefit from a Bank-financed contract, financially or otherwise, during such period of time as the Bank shall have determined. The list of debarred firms and individuals is available at the electronic address specified in the BDS.

- 4.6 Bidders that are state-owned enterprises or institutions in the Employer's Country may be eligible to compete and be awarded a Contract(s) only if they can establish, in a manner acceptable to the Bank, that they: (i) are legally and financially autonomous; (ii) operate under commercial law; and (iii) are not under supervision of the Employer.
- 4.7 A Bidder shall not be under suspension from Bidding by the Employer as the result of the operation of a Bid-Securing Declaration or Proposal-Securing Declaration.
- 4.8 Firms and individuals may be ineligible if so indicated in Section V and (a) as a matter of law or official regulations, the Borrower's country prohibits commercial relations with that country, provided that the Bank is satisfied that such exclusion does not preclude effective competition for the supply of goods or the contracting of works or services required; or (b) by an act of compliance with a decision of the United Nations Security Council taken under Chapter VII of the Charter of the United Nations, the Borrower's country prohibits any import of goods or contracting of works or services from that country, or any payments to any country, person, or entity in that country.
- 4.9 This Bidding is open for all eligible Bidders, unless otherwise specified in ITB 18.4.
- 4.10 A Bidder shall provide such documentary evidence of eligibility satisfactory to the Employer, as the Employer shall reasonably request.
- 4.11 A firm that is under a sanction of debarment by the Borrower from being awarded a contract is eligible to participate in this procurement, unless the Bank, at the Borrower's request, is satisfied that the debarment; (a) relates to fraud or corruption, and (b) followed a judicial or administrative proceeding that afforded the firm adequate due process.
- 5. Qualification of the Bidder5.1 All Bidders shall provide in Section IV, Bidding Forms, a preliminary description of the proposed work method and schedule, including drawings and charts, as necessary.

5.2 In the event that prequalification of Bidders has been undertaken as stated in ITB 18.4, the provisions on qualifications of the Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria shall not apply.

B. Contents of Bidding Document

6. Sections of Bidding
 Document
 6.1 The bidding document consists of Parts 1, 2, and 3, which include all the sections indicated below, and should be read in conjunction with any Addenda issued in accordance with ITB 9.

PART 1: Bidding Procedures

- Section I Instructions to Bidders (ITB)
- Section II Bid Data Sheet (BDS)
- Section III Evaluation and Qualification Criteria
- Section IV Bidding Forms
- Section V Eligible Countries
- Section VI Fraud and Corruption

PART 2: Employer's Requirements

Section VII - Employer's Requirements

PART 3: Contract

- Section VIII General Conditions of Contract (GCC)
- Section IX Special Conditions of Contract (SCC)
- Section X Contract Forms
- 6.2 The Specific Procurement Notice Request for Bids (RFB) or the notice to prequalified Bidders, as the case may be issued by the Employer is not part of this bidding document.
- 6.3 Unless obtained directly from the Employer, the Employer is not responsible for the completeness of the document, responses to requests for clarification, the Minutes of the pre-Bid meeting (if any), or Addenda to the bidding document in accordance with ITB 9. In case of any contradiction, documents obtained directly from the Employer shall prevail.
- 6.4 The Bidder is expected to examine all instructions, forms, terms, and specifications in the bidding document and to furnish with its Bid all information or documentation as is required by the bidding document.

- 7. Site Visit7.1 The Bidder, at the Bidder's own responsibility and risk, is encouraged to visit and examine the Site of required Services and its surroundings and obtain all information that may be necessary for preparing the Bid and entering into a contract for the Services. The costs of visiting the Site shall be at the Bidder's own expense.
- 8. Clarification of 8.1 A Bidder requiring any clarification of the bidding document shall contact the Employer in writing at the Employer's address specified **Bidding** in the BDS. The Employer will respond in writing to any request for **Document** clarification, provided that such request is received prior to the deadline for submission of Bids within a period specified in the BDS. The Employer shall forward copies of its response to all Bidders who have acquired the bidding document in accordance with ITB 6.3, including a description of the inquiry but without identifying its source. If so specified in the BDS, the Employer shall also promptly publish its response at the web page identified in the BDS. Should the clarification result in changes to the essential elements of the bidding document, the Employer shall amend the bidding document following the procedure under ITB 9 and ITB 23.2.
- 9. Amendment of BiddingBiddingDocument9.1 At any time prior to the deadline for submission of Bids, the Employer may amend the Bidding document by issuing addenda.
 - 9.2 Any addendum issued shall be part of the bidding document and shall be communicated in writing to all who have obtained the bidding document from the Employer in accordance with ITB 6.3. The Employer shall also promptly publish the addendum on the Employer's web page in accordance with ITB 8.1.
 - 9.3 To give prospective Bidders reasonable time in which to take an addendum into account in preparing their Bids, the Employer shall extend, as necessary, the deadline for submission of Bids, in accordance with ITB 23.2 below.

C. Preparation of Bids

- 10. Cost of Bidding10.1 The Bidder shall bear all costs associated with the preparation and submission of its Bid, and the Employer shall not be responsible or liable for those costs, regardless of the conduct or outcome of the Bidding process.
- 11. Language of Bid
 11.1 The Bid as well as all correspondence and documents relating to the Bid exchanged by the Bidder and the Employer shall be written in the language specified in the BDS. Supporting documents and printed literature that are part of the Bid may be in another language provided they are accompanied by an accurate translation of the relevant

passages into the language specified in the BDS, in which case, for purposes of interpretation of the Bid, such translation shall govern.

- 12.1 The Bid shall comprise the following:
 - (a) Letter of Bid prepared in accordance with ITB 13;
 - (b) Schedules: priced Activity Schedule completed in accordance with ITB 13 and ITB 15;
 - (c) **Bid Security or Bid-Securing Declaration** in accordance with ITB 20.1:
 - (d) Alternative Bid: if permissible in accordance with ITB 14;
 - (e) Authorization: written confirmation authorizing the signatory of the Bid to commit the Bidder, in accordance with ITB 21.3;
 - (f) Qualifications: documentary evidence in accordance with ITB 18 establishing the Bidder's qualifications to perform the Contract if its Bid is accepted;
 - (g) Bidder's Eligibility: documentary evidence in accordance with ITB 18 establishing the Bidder's eligibility to Bid;
 - (h) Conformity: documentary evidence in accordance with ITB 17, that the Services conform to the bidding document; and
 - (i) any other document required in the BDS.
 - 12.2 In addition to the requirements under ITB 12.1, Bids submitted by a JV shall include a copy of the Joint Venture Agreement entered into by all members. Alternatively, a letter of intent to execute a Joint Venture Agreement in the event of a successful Bid shall be signed by all members and submitted with the Bid, together with a copy of the proposed Agreement.
 - 12.3 The Bidder shall furnish in the Letter of Bid information on commissions and gratuities, if any, paid or to be paid to agents or any other party relating to this Bid.
- 13. Letter of Bid 13.1 The Letter of Bid and priced Activity Schedule shall be prepared using the relevant forms furnished in Section IV, Bidding Forms. The forms and Activity must be completed without any alterations to the text, and no substitutes shall be accepted except as provided under ITB 21.3. All blank spaces shall be filled in with the information requested.

12. Documents Comprising the Bid

Schedule

- 14. Alternative
Bids14.1Unless otherwise indicated in the BDS, alternative Bids shall not be
considered. If alternatives are permitted, only the technical
alternatives, if any, of the Most Advantageous Bidder shall be
considered by the Employer.
 - 14.2 When alternative times for completion are explicitly invited, a statement to that effect will be included **in the BDS** and the method of evaluating different time schedules will be described in Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria.
 - 14.3 When specified **in the BDS**, Bidders are permitted to submit alternative technical solutions for specified parts of the Services, and such parts will be identified **in the BDS**, as will the method for their evaluating, and described in Section VII, Employer's Requirements.
- **15. Bid Prices and**
Discounts15.1The prices and discounts (including any price reduction) quoted by the
Bidder in the Letter of Bid and in the Activity Schedule(s) shall
conform to the requirements specified below.
 - 15.2 All lots (contracts) and items must be listed and priced separately in the Activity Schedule(s).
 - 15.3 The Contract shall be for the Services, as described in Appendix A to the Contract and in the Specifications (or Terms of Reference), based on the priced Activity Schedule, submitted by the Bidder.
 - 15.4 The Bidder shall quote any discounts and indicate the methodology for their application in the Letter of Bid in accordance with ITB 13.1.
 - 15.5 The Bidder shall fill in rates and prices for all items of the Services described in the in Specifications (or Terms of Reference), and listed in the Activity Schedule in Section VII, Employer's Requirements. Items for which no rate or price is entered by the Bidder will not be paid for by the Employer when executed and shall be deemed covered by the other rates and prices in the Activity Schedule.
 - 15.6 All duties, taxes, and other levies payable by the Service Provider under the Contract, or for any other cause, as of the date 28 days prior to the deadline for submission of Bids, shall be included in the total Bid price submitted by the Bidder.
 - 15.7 If provided for **in the BDS**, the rates and prices quoted by the Bidder shall be subject to adjustment during the performance of the Contract in accordance with and the provisions of Clause 6.6 of the General Conditions of Contract and/or Special Conditions of Contract. The Bidder shall submit with the Bid all the information required under the Special Conditions of Contract and of the General Conditions of Contract.

- 15.8 For the purpose of determining the remuneration due for additional Services, a breakdown of the lump-sum price shall be provided by the Bidder in the form of Appendices D and E to the Contract.
- 16. Currencies of Bid and Payment
 16.1 The currency(ies) of the Bid and the currency(ies) of payments shall be the same. The Bidder shall quote in the currency of the Employer's Country the portion of the Bid price that corresponds to expenditures incurred in the currency of the Employer's Country, unless otherwise specified in the BDS.
 - 16.2 The Bidder may express the Bid price in any currency. If the Bidder wishes to be paid in a combination of amounts in different currencies, it may quote its price accordingly but shall use no more than three foreign currencies in addition to the currency of the Employer's Country.
 - 16.3 Bidders may be required by the Employer to justify their foreign currency requirements and to substantiate that the amounts included in the Lump-sum are reasonable and responsive to ITB 16.1 and 16.2.
- 17. Documents
 Establishing
 Conformity of
 Services
 17.1 To establish the conformity of the Non-Consulting Services to the
 bidding document, the Bidder shall furnish as part of its Bid the
 documentary evidence that Services provided conform to the technical
 specifications and standards specified in Section VII, Employer's
 Requirements.
 - 17.2 Standards for provision of the Non-Consulting Services are intended to be descriptive only and not restrictive. The Bidder may offer other standards of quality provided that it demonstrates, to the Employer's satisfaction, that the substitutions ensure substantial equivalence or are superior to those specified in the Section VII, Employer's Requirements.
 - 18.1 To establish Bidder's their eligibility in accordance with ITB 4, Bidders shall complete the Letter of Bid, included in Section IV, Bidding Forms.
 - 18.2 The documentary evidence of the Bidder's qualifications to perform the Contract if its Bid is accepted shall establish to the Employer's satisfaction that the Bidder meets each of the qualification criterion specified in Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria.
 - 18.3 All Bidders shall provide in Section IV, Bidding Forms, a preliminary description of the proposed methodology, work plan and schedule.
 - 18.4 In the event that prequalification of Bidders has been undertaken as stated **in the BDS**, only Bids from prequalified Bidders shall be considered for award of Contract. These qualified Bidders should submit with their Bids any information updating their original prequalification applications or, alternatively, confirm in their Bids that the originally submitted prequalification information remains essentially correct as of the date of Bid submission.
- 18. Documents Establishing the Eligibility and Qualifications of the Bidder

19. Period of

Bids

Validity of

- 18.5 If prequalification has not taken place before Bidding, the qualification criteria for the Bidders are specified in Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria.
- 19.1 Bids shall remain valid for the Bid Validity period specified **in the BDS.** The Bid Validity period starts from the date fixed for the Bid submission deadline date (as prescribed by the Employer in accordance with ITB 23.1). A Bid valid for a shorter period shall be rejected by the Employer as nonresponsive.
 - 19.2 In exceptional circumstances, prior to the expiration of the Bid validity period, the Employer may request Bidders to extend the period of validity of their Bids. The request and the responses shall be made in writing. If a Bid Security is requested in accordance with ITB 20, it shall also be extended for a corresponding period. A Bidder may refuse the request without forfeiting its Bid Security. A Bidder granting the request shall not be required or permitted to modify its Bid, except as provided in ITB 19.3.
 - 19.3 If the award is delayed by a period exceeding fifty-six (56) days beyond the expiry of the initial bid validity period, the Contract price shall be determined as follows:
 - (a) in the case of fixed price contracts, the Contract price shall be the Bid price adjusted by the factor specified **in the BDS**;
 - (b) in the case of adjustable price contracts, no adjustment shall be made; or
 - (c) in any case, Bid evaluation shall be based on the Bid price without taking into consideration the applicable correction from those indicated above.
- 20. Bid Security 20.1 The Bidder shall furnish as part of its Bid, either a Bid-Securing Declaration or a Bid security, as specified in the BDS, in original form and, in the case of a Bid Security, in the amount and currency specified in the BDS.
 - 20.2 A Bid Securing Declaration shall use the form included in Section IV, Bidding Forms.
 - 20.3 If a Bid Security is specified pursuant to ITB 20.1, the Bid Security shall be a demand guarantee, and in any of the following forms at the Bidder's option:
 - (a) an unconditional guarantee issued by a bank or non-bank financial institution (such as an insurance, bonding or surety company);

- (b) an irrevocable letter of credit;
- (c) a cashier's or certified check; or
- (d) another security specified in the BDS,

from a reputable source and an eligible country. If the unconditional guarantee is issued by a non-bank financial institution located outside the Employer's Country, the issuing non-bank financial institution shall have a correspondent financial institution located in the Employer's Country to make it enforceable, unless the Employer has agreed in writing, prior to Bid submission, that a correspondent financial institution is not required. In the case of a bank guarantee, the Bid security shall be submitted either using the Bid Security Form included in Section IV, Bidding Forms, or in another substantially similar format approved by the Employer prior to Bid submission. The Bid Security shall be valid for twenty-eight (28) days beyond the original validity period of the Bid, or beyond any period of extension if requested under ITB 19.2.

- 20.4 If a Bid Security is specified pursuant to ITB 20.1, any Bid not accompanied by a substantially responsive Bid Security shall be rejected by the Employer as non-responsive.
- 20.5 If a Bid Security is specified pursuant to ITB 20.1, the Bid Security of unsuccessful Bidders shall be returned as promptly as possible upon the successful Bidder's signing the contract and furnishing the Performance Security pursuant to ITB 46.
- 20.6 The Bid Security of the successful Bidder shall be returned as promptly as possible once the successful Bidder has signed the Contract and furnished the required Performance Security.
- 20.7 The Bid Security may be forfeited or the Bid-Securing Declaration executed:
 - (a) if a Bidder withdraws its Bid during the period of Bid validity specified by the Bidder in the Letter of Bid, or any extension thereto provided by the Bidder; or
 - (b) if the successful Bidder fails to:
 - (i) sign the Contract in accordance with ITB 45; or
 - (ii) furnish a performance security in accordance with ITB 46.
- 20.8 The Bid Security or Bid-Securing Declaration of a JV must be in the name of the JV that submits the Bid. If the JV has not been legally constituted into a legally enforceable JV at the time of Bidding, the Bid security or Bid-Securing Declaration shall be in the names of all

future members as named in the letter of intent referred to in ITB 4.1 and ITB 12.2.

- 20.9 If a Bid Security is not required in the BDS, pursuant to ITB 20.1, and
 - (a) if a Bidder withdraws its Bid during the period of Bid validity specified by the Bidder on the Letter of Bid; or
 - (b) if the successful Bidder fails to:
 - (i) sign the Contract in accordance with ITB 45; or
 - (ii) furnish a performance security in accordance with ITB 46;

the Borrower may, if provided for **in the BDS**, declare the Bidder ineligible to be awarded a contract by the Employer for a period of time as stated **in the BDS**.

- 21. Format and Signing of Bid21.1 The Bidder shall prepare one original of the documents comprising the Bid as described in ITB 12, bound with the volume containing the Form of Bid, and clearly marked "Original." In addition, the Bidder shall submit copies of the Bid, in the number specified in the BDS, and clearly marked as "Copies." In the event of discrepancy between them, the original shall prevail.
 - 21.2 Bidders shall mark as "CONFIDENTIAL" information in their Bids which is confidential to their business. This may include proprietary information, trade secrets, or commercial or financially sensitive information.
 - 21.3 The original and all copies of the Bid shall be typed or written in indelible ink and shall be signed by a person or persons duly authorized to sign on behalf of the Bidder. This authorization shall consist of a written confirmation as specified **in the BDS** and shall be attached to the Bid. The name and position held by each person signing the authorization must be typed or printed below the signature. All pages of the Bid where entries or amendments have been made shall be signed or initialed by the person signing the Bid.
 - 21.4 In case the Bidder is a JV, the Bid shall be signed by an authorized representative of the JV on behalf of the JV, and so as to be legally binding on all the members as evidenced by a power of attorney signed by their legally authorized representatives.
 - 21.5 Any inter-lineation, erasures, or overwriting shall be valid only if they are signed or initialed by the person signing the Bid.

D. Submission and Opening of Bids

22. Sealing and Marking of Bids	22.1	The Bidder shall deliver the Bid in a single, sealed envelope. Within the single envelope the Bidder shall place the following separate, sealed envelopes:
		(a) in an envelope marked "ORIGINAL", all documents comprising the Bid, as described in ITB 12; and
		(b) in an envelope marked "COPIES", all required copies of the Bid; and
		(c) if alternative Bids are permitted in accordance with ITB 14, and if relevant:
		(i) in an envelope marked " ORIGINAL - ALTERNATIVE BID", the alternative Bid; and
		(ii) in the envelope marked "COPIES – ALTERNATIVE BID" all required copies of the alternative Bid.
	22.2	The inner and outer envelopes shall:
		(a) bear the name and address of the Bidder;
		(b) be addressed to the Employer in accordance with ITB 23.1;
		(c) bear the specific identification of this Bidding process specified in accordance with BDS 1.1; and
		(d) bear a warning not to open before the time and date for Bid opening.
	22.3	If all envelopes are not sealed and marked as required, the Employer will assume no responsibility for the misplacement or premature opening of the Bid.
23. Deadline for Submission of Bids	23.1	Bids must be received by the Employer at the address and no later than the date and time specified in the BDS . When so specified in the BDS , Bidders shall have the option of submitting their Bids electronically. Bidders submitting Bids electronically shall follow the electronic Bid submission procedures specified in the BDS .
	23.2	The Employer may, at its discretion, extend the deadline for the submission of Bids by amending the bidding document in accordance with ITB 9, in which case all rights and obligations of the Employer and Bidders previously subject to the deadline shall thereafter be subject to the deadline as extended.
24. Late Bids	24.1	The Employer shall not consider any Bid that arrives after the deadline for submission of Bids, in accordance with ITB 23. Any Bid received

by the Employer after the deadline for submission of Bids shall be declared late, rejected, and returned unopened to the Bidder.

- 25. Withdrawal, Substitution and Modification of Bids
 25.1 A Bidder may withdraw, substitute, or modify its Bid after it has been submitted by sending a written notice, duly signed by an authorized representative, and shall include a copy of the authorization (the power of attorney) in accordance with ITB 21.3, (except that withdrawal notices do not require copies). The corresponding substitution or modification of the Bid must accompany the respective written notice. All notices must be:
 - (a) prepared and submitted in accordance with ITB 21 and ITB 22 (except that withdrawal notices do not require copies), and in addition, the respective envelopes shall be clearly marked "WITHDRAWAL," "SUBSTITUTION," or "MODIFICATION;" and
 - (b) received by the Employer prior to the deadline prescribed for submission of Bids, in accordance with ITB 23.
 - 25.2 Bids requested to be withdrawn in accordance with ITB 25.1 shall be returned unopened to the Bidders.
 - 25.3 No Bid may be withdrawn, substituted, or modified in the interval between the deadline for submission of Bids and the expiration of the period of Bid validity specified by the Bidder on the Letter of Bid or any extension thereof.
- 26. Bid Opening 26.1 Except as in the cases specified in ITB 23 and ITB 25.2, the Employer shall, at the Bid opening, publicly open and read out all Bids received by the deadline at the date, time and place specified in the BDS in the presence of Bidders' designated representatives and anyone who choose to attend. Any specific electronic Bid opening procedures required if electronic bidding is permitted in accordance with ITB 23.1, shall be as specified in the BDS.
 - 26.2 First, envelopes marked "WITHDRAWAL" shall be opened and read out and the envelope with the corresponding Bid shall not be opened, but returned to the Bidder. If the withdrawal envelope does not contain a copy of the "power of attorney" confirming the signature as a person duly authorized to sign on behalf of the Bidder, the corresponding Bid will be opened. No Bid withdrawal shall be permitted unless the corresponding withdrawal notice contains a valid authorization to request the withdrawal and is read out at Bid opening.
 - 26.3 Next, envelopes marked "SUBSTITUTION" shall be opened and read out and exchanged with the corresponding Bid being substituted, and the substituted Bid shall not be opened, but returned to the Bidder. No Bid substitution shall be permitted unless the corresponding

substitution notice contains a valid authorization to request the substitution and is read out at Bid opening.

- 26.4 Next, envelopes marked "MODIFICATION" shall be opened and read out with the corresponding Bid. No Bid modification shall be permitted unless the corresponding modification notice contains a valid authorization to request the modification and is read out at Bid opening.
- 26.5 Next, all remaining envelopes shall be opened one at a time, reading out: the name of the Bidder and whether there is a modification; the total Bid Prices, per lot (contract) if applicable, including any discounts and alternative Bids; the presence or absence of a Bid Security or Bid-Securing Declaration, if required; and any other details as the Employer may consider appropriate.
- 26.6 Only Bids, alternative Bids and discounts that are opened and read out at Bid opening shall be considered further. The Letter of Bid and the priced Activity Schedule are to be initialed by representatives of the Employer attending Bid opening in the manner specified **in the BDS**.
- 26.7 The Employer shall neither discuss the merits of any Bid nor reject any Bid (except for late Bids, in accordance with ITB 24.1).
- 26.8 The Employer shall prepare a record of the Bid opening that shall include, as a minimum:
 - (a) the name of the Bidder and whether there is a withdrawal, substitution, or modification;
 - (b) the Bid Price, per lot (contract) if applicable, including any discounts; and
 - (c) any alternative Bids;
 - (d) the presence or absence of a Bid Security or Bid-Securing Declaration, if one was required.
- 26.9 The Bidders' representatives who are present shall be requested to sign the record. The omission of a Bidder's signature on the record shall not invalidate the contents and effect of the record. A copy of the record shall be distributed to all Bidders.

E. Evaluation and Comparison of Bids

27. Confidentiality 27.1 Information relating to the evaluation of Bids and recommendation of contract award, shall not be disclosed to Bidders or any other persons not officially concerned with the Bidding process until information on

29. Deviations.

Reservations,

and Omissions

the Intention to Award the Contract is transmitted to all Bidders in accordance with ITB 41.

- 27.2 Any effort by a Bidder to influence the Employer in the evaluation or contract award decisions may result in the rejection of its Bid.
- 27.3 Notwithstanding ITB 27.2, from the time of Bid opening to the time of Contract Award, if any Bidder wishes to contact the Employer on any matter related to the Bidding process, it should do so in writing.
- 28. Clarification of 28.1 To assist in the examination, evaluation, and comparison of Bids, and qualification of the Bidders, the Employer may, at the Employer's discretion, ask any Bidder for clarification of its Bid including breakdowns of the prices in the Activity Schedule, and other information that the Employer may require. Any clarification submitted by a Bidder in respect to its Bid and that is not in response to a request by the Employer shall not be considered. The Employer's request for clarification and the response shall be in writing. No change, including any voluntary increase or decrease, in the prices or substance of the Bid shall be sought, offered, or permitted, except to confirm the correction of the Bids, in accordance with ITB 32.
 - 28.2 If a Bidder does not provide clarifications of its Bid by the date and time set in the Employer's request for clarification, its Bid may be rejected.
 - 29.1 During the evaluation of Bids, the following definitions apply:
 - (a) "Deviation" is a departure from the requirements specified in the bidding document;
 - (b) "Reservation" is the setting of limiting conditions or withholding from complete acceptance of the requirements specified in the bidding document; and
 - (c) "Omission" is the failure to submit part or all of the information or documentation required in the bidding document.
- 30. Determination 30.1 The Employer's determination of a Bid's responsiveness is to be based on the contents of the Bid itself, as defined in ITB 12.Responsiveness
 - 30.2 A substantially responsive Bid is one that meets the requirements of the bidding document without material deviation, reservation, or omission. A material deviation, reservation, or omission is one that:
 - (a) if accepted, would:

Errors

- (i) affect in any substantial way the scope, quality, or performance of the Non-Consulting Services specified in the Contract; or
- (ii) limit in any substantial way, inconsistent with the bidding document, the Employer's rights or the Bidder's obligations under the Contract; or
- (b) if rectified, would unfairly affect the competitive position of other Bidders presenting substantially responsive Bids.
- 30.3 The Employer shall examine the technical aspects of the Bid submitted in accordance with ITB 17 and ITB 18, in particular, to confirm that all requirements of Section VII, Employer's Requirements have been met without any material deviation or reservation, or omission.
- 30.4 If a Bid is not substantially responsive to the requirements of bidding document, it shall be rejected by the Employer and may not subsequently be made responsive by correction of the material deviation, reservation, or omission.
- 31. Nonconformitie 31.1 Provided that a Bid is substantially responsive, the Employer may waive any nonconformities in the Bid.Omissions
 - 31.2 Provided that a Bid is substantially responsive, the Employer may request that the Bidder submit the necessary information or documentation, within a reasonable period of time, to rectify nonmaterial nonconformities or omissions in the Bid related to documentation requirements. Requesting information or documentation on such nonconformities shall not be related to any aspect of the price of the Bid. Failure of the Bidder to comply with the request may result in the rejection of its Bid.
 - 31.3 Provided that a Bid is substantially responsive, the Employer shall rectify quantifiable nonmaterial nonconformities related to the Bid Price. To this effect, the Bid Price shall be adjusted, for comparison purposes only, to reflect the price of a missing or non-conforming item or component in the manner specified **in the BDS**.
- **32. Correction of Arithmetical** 32.1 Provided that the Bid is substantially responsive, the Employer shall correct arithmetical errors on the following basis:
 - (a) if there is a discrepancy between the unit price and the line item total that is obtained by multiplying the unit price by the quantity, the unit price shall prevail and the line item total shall be corrected, unless in the opinion of the Employer there is an obvious misplacement of the decimal point in the unit price, in

34. Margin of

Preference

which case the line item total as quoted shall govern and the unit price shall be corrected;

- (b) if there is an error in a total corresponding to the addition or subtraction of subtotals, the subtotals shall prevail and the total shall be corrected; and
- (c) if there is a discrepancy between words and figures, the amount in words shall prevail, unless the amount expressed in words is related to an arithmetic error, in which case the amount in figures shall prevail subject to (a) and (b) above.
- 32.2 Bidders shall be requested to accept correction of arithmetical errors. Failure to accept the correction in accordance with ITB 32.1, shall result in the rejection of the Bid.
- 33. Conversion to Single Currency
 33.1 For evaluation and comparison purposes, the currency(ies) of the Bid shall be converted in a single currency as specified in the BDS.
 - 34.1 A margin of preference shall not apply.
- 35. Evaluation of Bids35.1 The Employer shall use the criteria and methodologies listed in this ITB and Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria. No other evaluation criteria or methodologies shall be permitted. By applying the criteria and methodologies, the Employer shall determine the Most Advantageous Bid. This is the Bid of the Bidder that meets the qualification criteria and whose Bid has been determined to be:
 - (a) substantially responsive to the bidding document; and
 - (b) the lowest evaluated cost.
 - 35.2 In evaluating the Bids, the Employer will determine for each Bid the evaluated Bid cost by adjusting the Bid price as follows:
 - (a) price adjustment for correction of arithmetic errors in accordance with ITB 32.1;
 - (b) price adjustment due to discounts offered in accordance with ITB 15.4;
 - (c) converting the amount resulting from applying (a) and (b) above, if relevant, to a single currency in accordance with ITB 33;
 - (d) price adjustment due to quantifiable nonmaterial nonconformities in accordance with ITB 31.3;

- (e) excluding provisional sums and the provision, if any, for contingencies in the Activity Schedule but including Daywork, when requested in the Specifications (or Terms of Reference); and
- (f) the additional evaluation factors are specified in Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria.
- 35.3 The estimated effect of the price adjustment provisions of the Conditions of Contract, applied over the period of execution of the Contract, shall not be taken into account in Bid evaluation.
- 35.4 If this bidding document allows Bidders to quote separate prices for different lots (contracts), the methodology to determine the lowest evaluated cost of the lot (contract) combinations, including any discounts offered in the Letter of Bid, is specified in Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria.
- 36. Comparison of Bids36.1 The Employer shall compare the evaluated costs of all substantially responsive Bids established in accordance with ITB 35.2 to determine the Bid that has the lowest evaluated cost.
- 37. Abnormally Low Bid is one where the Bid price, in combination with other constituent elements of the Bid, appears unreasonably low to the extent that the Bid price raises material concerns as to the capability of the Bidder to perform the Contract for the offered Bid price.
 - 37.2 In the event of identification of a potentially Abnormally Low Bid, the Employer shall seek written clarifications from the Bidder, including detailed price analyses of its Bid price in relation to the subject matter of the contract, scope, proposed methodology, schedule, allocation of risks and responsibilities and any other requirements of the bidding document.
 - 37.3 After evaluation of the price analyses, in the event that the Employer determines that the Bidder has failed to demonstrate its capability to perform the Contract for the offered Bid Price, the Employer shall reject the Bid.
- 38. Qualification of the Bidder38.1 The Employer shall determine to its satisfaction whether the Bidder that is selected as having submitted the lowest evaluated cost and substantially responsive Bid is eligible and meets the qualifying criteria specified in Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria.
 - 38.2 The determination shall be based upon an examination of the documentary evidence of the Bidder's qualifications submitted by the Bidder, pursuant to ITB 18. The determination shall not take into consideration the qualifications of other firms such as the Bidder's

subsidiaries, parent entities, affiliates, subcontractors or any other firm(s) different from the Bidder that submitted the Bid.

- 38.3 An affirmative determination shall be a prerequisite for award of the Contract to the Bidder. A negative determination shall result in disqualification of the Bid, in which event the Employer shall proceed to the Bidder who offers a substantially responsive Bid with the next lowest evaluated cost to make a similar determination of that Bidder's qualifications to perform satisfactorily.
- 39. Employer's Right to Accept Any Bid, and to Bidding process and reject all Bids at any time prior to Contract Award, without thereby incurring any liability to Bidders. In case of annulment, all Bids submitted and specifically, Bid securities, shall be promptly returned to the Bidders.
- 40. Standstill Period
 40.1 The Contract shall not be awarded earlier than the expiry of the Standstill Period. The Standstill Period shall be ten (10) Business Days unless extended in accordance with ITB 44. The Standstill Period commences the day after the date the Employer has transmitted to each Bidder the Notification of Intention to Award the Contract. Where only one Bid is submitted, or if this contract is in response to an emergency situation recognized by the Bank, the Standstill Period shall not apply
- 41. Notification of Intention of Intention of Award41.1 The Employer shall send to each Bidder, the Notification of Intention to Award the Contract to the successful Bidder. The Notification of Intention to Award shall contain, at a minimum, the following information:
 - (a) the name and address of the Bidder submitting the successful Bid;
 - (b) the Contract price of the successful Bid;
 - (c) the names of all Bidders who submitted Bids, and their Bid prices as readout and as evaluated;
 - (d) a statement of the reason(s) the Bid (of the unsuccessful Bidder to whom the notification is addressed) was unsuccessful;
 - (e) the expiry date of the Standstill Period; and
 - (f) instructions on how to request a debriefing or submit a complaint during the standstill period.

F. Award of Contract

- 42. Award Criteria42.1 Subject to ITB 39, the Employer shall award the Contract to the successful Bidder. This is the Bidder whose Bid has been determined to be the Most Advantageous Bid. This is the Bid of the Bidder that meets the qualification criteria and whose Bid has been determined to be:
 - (a) substantially responsive to the bidding document; and
 - (b) the lowest evaluated cost.
- 43. Notification of Award
 43.1 Prior to the expiration of the Bid Validity Period and upon expiry of the Standstill Period, specified in ITB 40.1, or any extension thereof, and, upon satisfactorily addressing any complaint that has been filed within the Standstill Period, the Employer shall notify the successful Bidder, in writing, that its Bid has been accepted. The notification of award (hereinafter and in the Conditions of Contract and Contract Forms called the "Letter of Acceptance") shall specify the sum that the Employer will pay the Service Provider in consideration of the execution of the Contract (hereinafter and in the Conditions of Contract and Contract and Contract Forms called "the Contract Price").
 - 43.2 Within ten (10) Business Days after the date of transmission of the Letter of Acceptance, the Employer shall publish the Contract Award Notice which shall contain, at a minimum, the following information:
 - (a) name and address of the Employer;
 - (b) name and reference number of the contract being awarded, and the selection method used;
 - (c) names of all Bidders that submitted Bids, and their Bid prices as read out at Bid opening, and as evaluated;
 - (d) name of Bidders whose Bids were rejected and the reasons for their rejection;
 - (e) the name of the successful Bidder, the final total contract price, the contract duration and a summary of its scope; and
 - (f) successful Bidder's Beneficial Ownership Disclosure Form, if specified in BDS ITB 45.1.
 - 43.3 The Contract Award Notice shall be published on the Employer's website with free access if available, or in at least one newspaper of national circulation in the Employer's Country, or in the official gazette. The Employer shall also publish the contract award notice in UNDB online.

- 43.4 Until a formal Contract is prepared and executed, the Letter of Acceptance shall constitute a binding Contract.
- 44. Debriefing by the Employer44.1 On receipt of the Borrower's Notification of Intention to Award referred to in ITB 41, an unsuccessful Bidder has three (3) Business Days to make a written request to the Employer for a debriefing. The Employer shall provide a debriefing to all unsuccessful Bidders whose request is received within this deadline.
 - 44.2 Where a request for debriefing is received within the deadline, the Employer shall provide a debriefing within five (5) Business Days, unless the Employer decides, for justifiable reasons, to provide the debriefing outside this timeframe. In that case, the standstill period shall automatically be extended until five (5) Business Days after such debriefing is provided. If more than one debriefing is so delayed, the standstill period shall not end earlier than five (5) Business Days after the last debriefing takes place. The Employer shall promptly inform, by the quickest means available, all Bidders of the extended standstill period.
 - 44.3 Where a request for debriefing is received by the Employer later than the three (3)-Business Day deadline, the Employer should provide the debriefing as soon as practicable, and normally no later than fifteen (15) Business Days from the date of publication of Public Notice of Award of contract. Requests for debriefing received outside the three (3)-day deadline shall not lead to extension of the standstill period.
 - 44.4 Debriefings of unsuccessful Bidders may be done in writing or verbally. The Bidder shall bear their own costs of attending such a debriefing meeting.
- 45. Signing of Contract
 45.1 The Employer shall send to the successful Bidder the Letter of Acceptance including the Contract Agreement, and, if specified in the BDS, a request to submit the Beneficial Ownership Disclosure Form providing additional information on its beneficial ownership. The Beneficial Ownership Disclosure Form, if so requested, shall be submitted within eight (8) Business Days of receiving this request.
 - 45.2 The successful Bidder shall sign, date and return to the Employer, the Contract Agreement within twenty-eight (28) days of its receipt.
- 46. Performance
 Security
 46.1 Within twenty-eight (28) days of the receipt of the Letter of Acceptance from the Employer, the successful Bidder, if required, shall furnish the Performance Security in accordance with the GCC 3.9, using for that purpose the Performance Security Form included in Section X, Contract Forms, or another Form acceptable to the Employer. If the Performance Security furnished by the successful

Bidder is in the form of a bond, it shall be issued by a bonding or insurance company that has been determined by the successful Bidder to be acceptable to the Employer. A foreign institution providing a bond shall have a correspondent financial institution located in the Employer's Country, unless the Employer has agreed in writing that a correspondent financial institution is not required.

- 46.2 Failure of the successful Bidder to submit the above-mentioned Performance Security or sign the Contract shall constitute sufficient grounds for the annulment of the award and forfeiture of the Bid Security. In that event the Employer may award the Contract to the Bidder offering the next Most Advantageous Bid.
- 47. Adjudicator47.1 The Employer proposes the person named in the BDS to be appointed as Adjudicator under the Contract, at an hourly fee specified in the BDS, plus reimbursable expenses. If the Bidder disagrees with this Bid, the Bidder should so state in the Bid. If, in the Letter of Acceptance, the Employer has not agreed on the appointment of the Adjudicator, the Adjudicator shall be appointed by the Appointing Authority designated in the Special Conditions of Contract at the request of either party.
- 48. Procurement 48.1 The procedures for making a Procurement-related Complaint are as specified in the BDS.Complaint

Section II - Bid Data Sheet (BDS)

ITB Reference	A. General		
ITB 1.1	The reference number of the Request for Bids (RFB) is :		
	LK-MHNIM-106298-NC-RFQ		
	The Employer is:		
	Primary Healthcare System Strengthening Project		
	The name of the RFB is:		
	Selection of service provider for production of 5 short video clips for the promotion of primary healthcare reorganizing activities.		
ITB 1.2(a)	N/A		
ITB 1.3	The intended completion period is 30 days from the acceptance of award letter.		
ITB 2.1	The Borrower is the Government of Democratic Socialist Republic of Lanka		
	The name of the Project is:		
	Primary Healthcare System Strengthening Project		
ITB 4.1	Maximum number of members in the Joint Venture (JV) shall be: None		
ITB 4.5	A list of debarred firms and individuals is available on the Bank's external website: <u>http://www.worldbank.org/debarr.</u>		
	B. Contents of Bidding Document		
ITB 8.1	For <u>Clarification of Bid purposes</u> only, the Employer's address is:		
Attention : Dr. J.M.W Jayasundara Bandara			
The Project Director			
	Address : Primary Healthcare System Strengthening Project, 3 rd Floor, J.R.jayawardena Center, 191, Dharmapala Mawatha, Colombo 07		
	Telephone: +9411-2680490 / +94112680549		
	Facsimile number: +94112680490		
	Electronic mail address: psspmoh.lk@gmail.com		

	Web site: pssp.health.gov.lk		
	C. Preparation of Bids		
ITB 11.1	The language of the Bid is: <i>English</i> All correspondence exchange shall be in English language.		
ITB 14.1	Alternative Bids shall not be considered.		
ITB 14.2	Alternative times for completion <i>shall not be</i> permitted.		
ITB 14.3	N/A		
ITB 15.7	The prices quoted by the Bidder <i>shall not</i> be subject to adjustment during the performance of the Contract.		
ITB 16.1	Currency of Bid and Payment is Sri Lankan Rupees		
ITB 18.4	Prequalification has not been undertaken.		
ITB 19.1 The Bid validity period shall be until 31 st December 2021.			
ITB 19.3 (a) The Bid price shall be adjusted by the following factor(s): None			
ITB 20.1A Bid-Securing Declaration shall be required.			
ITB 20.3 (d) Other types of acceptable securities: None			
ITB 20.9 Not applicable			
ITB 21.1	In addition to the original of the Bid, the number of copies is: One		
ITB 21.3The written confirmation of authorization to sign on behalf of the B shall consist of: Power of Attorney			
	D. Submission and Opening of Bids		
ITB 23.1	Pre Bid MeetingAddress : Primary Healthcare System Strengthening Project, 3 rd Floor, J.R Jayawardena Center, 191, Dharmapala Mawatha, Colombo 07Date: 11th November 2021Time: 1000 Hours		

	For Bid submission purposes only, the Employer's address is		
	Attention : Dr. J.M.W Jayasundara Bandara		
	The Project Director		
	Address : Primary Healthcare System Strengthening Project, 3 rd Floor, J.R.jayawardena Center, 191, Dharmapala Mawatha, Colombo 07		
	Telephone: +9411-2680490 / +94112680549		
	Facsimile number: +94112680490		
	Electronic mail address: psspmoh.lk@gmail.com		
ITB 23.1	The deadline for Bid submission is:		
	Date: 16 th November 2021		
	Time: 1000 Hours		
	Bidders <i>shall not</i> have the option of submitting their Bids electronically.		
ITB 26.1	The Bid opening shall take place at:		
	Primary Healthcare System Strengthening Project, 3 rd Floor, J.R.jayawardena Center, 191, Dharmapala Mawatha, Colombo 07.		
Date: 16 th November 2021			
	Time: 1000 Hours		
ITB 26.1	Not applicable		
ITB 26.6	The Letter of Bid and priced Activity Schedule shall be initialed by two representatives of the Employer conducting Bid opening		
	E. Evaluation and Comparison of Bids		
ITB 31.3	Refer Section III - Evaluation and Qualification Criteria		
	F. Award of Contract		

ITB 45.1	The successful Bidder <i>shall not</i> submit the Beneficial Ownership Disclosure Form.	
ITB 46	A Performance Security shall be required.	
ITB 47	Not applicable	
ITB 48.1	The procedures for making a Procurement-related Complaint are detailed in the " <u>Procurement Regulations for IPF Borrowers</u> (Annex III)." If a Bidder wishes to make a Procurement-related Complaint, the Bidder should submit its complaint following these procedures, in writing (by the quickest means available, that is either by email or fax), to:	
Attention : Dr. J.M.W Jayasundara Bandara		
The Project Director		
Address : Primary Healthcare System Strengthening Project, 3 rd Floor, J.R. Jayawardena Center, 191, Dharmapala Mawatha, Colombo 07		
	Telephone: +9411-2680490 / +94112680549	
	Facsimile number: +94112680490	
	Electronic mail address: psspmoh.lk@gmail.com	
	In summary, a Procurement-related Complaint may challenge any of the following:	
	1. the terms of the Bidding Documents; and	
	2. the Employer's decision to award the contract.	

Section III - Evaluation and Qualification Criteria

Contents

1.	Eval	uation (ITB 35.2(f))34
	1.1	Adequacy of Technical Proposal Error! Bookmark not defined.
	1.2	Multiple Contracts
	1.3	Alternative Times for Completion
	1.4	Alternative Technical Solutions for specified parts of the Services Error! Bookmark not defined.
	1.5	Sustainable procurement
2.	Qual	ificationError! Bookmark not defined.

The Employer shall use the criteria and methodologies listed in this Section to evaluate Bids. By applying these criteria and methodologies, the Employer shall determine the Most Advantageous Bid. This is the Bid that has been determined to be:

- (a) substantially responsive to the bidding document, and
- (b) the lowest evaluated cost.

1. Evaluation (ITB 35.2(f))

In addition to the criteria listed in ITB 35.2 (a) to (e) the following criteria shall apply:

#	Criteria	Description	Pass / Fail basis Evidence should be available
01	Experience in similar assignments	The determination will take into account the Bidder's involvement in the similar assignments in the recent past.	At least 6 numbers of similar assignments with in last 3 years where the quality of products are satisfied. Attach the certificates given by the client's, making references on the services executed by bidder.
02	Financial capability	Annual turnover will be evaluate for last two years. (2018,2019) Attached Audited reports	Annual turnover shall be more than two times of the bid price for each year.
03	Draft script/ content	Draft script/ content should be	User friendliness, Easily understandable, Attractive, Interesting, Simple
03	Work plan and Methodology	approach including the allocation of necessary resources in providing the services.	 Specific resources have effectively allocated to the service. (Human and equipment) team should consist with experts in communication, audio-visual recording, editing, and media production. Models / actors to be used Should complete the task in 4 weeks after issuance of Notification of award

Section IV- Bidding Forms

Table of Forms

Letter of Bid	
Bidder Information Form	
Schedule Forms	
Activity Schedule	41
Method Statement	42
Work Plan	43
Others - Time Schedule	Error! Bookmark not defined.
Form of Bid-Securing Declaration	44

Letter of Bid

Date of this Bid submission: [insert date (as day, month and year) of Bid submission] **RFB No.: LK-MHNIM-106298-NC-RFQ**

To: The Project Director, Primary Healthcare System Strengthening Project

- (a) **No reservations:** We have examined and have no reservations to the bidding document, including Addenda issued in accordance with ITB 9;
- (b) **Eligibility**: We meet the eligibility requirements and have no conflict of interest in accordance with ITB 4;
- (c) **Bid-Securing Declaration:** We have not been suspended nor declared ineligible by the Employer based on execution of a Bid-Securing Declaration or Proposal-Securing Declaration in the Employer's Country in accordance with ITB 4.7;
- (d) **Conformity:** We offer to provide the Non-Consulting Services in conformity with the bidding document of the following: [*insert a brief description of the Non-Consulting Services*];
- (f) **Bid Validity Period:** Our Bid shall be valid for the period specified in BDS 19.1 (as amended if applicable) from the date fixed for the Bid submission deadline (specified in BDS 23.1 (as amended if applicable), and it shall remain binding upon us and may be accepted at any time before the expiration of that period;
- (g) **Performance Security:** If our Bid is accepted, we commit to obtain a Performance Security in accordance with the bidding document;
- (h) **One Bid Per Bidder:** We are not submitting any other Bid(s) as an individual Bidder, and we are not participating in any other Bid(s) as a Joint Venture member or as a subcontractor, and meet the requirements of ITB 4.3, other than alternative Bids submitted in accordance with ITB 14;
- (i) Suspension and Debarment: We, along with any of our subcontractors, suppliers, consultants, manufacturers, or service providers for any part of the contract, are not subject to, and not controlled by any entity or individual that is subject to, a temporary suspension or a debarment imposed by the World Bank Group or a debarment imposed by the World Bank Group or a debarment imposed by the World Bank Group in accordance with the Agreement for Mutual Enforcement of Debarment Decisions between the World Bank and other development banks. Further, we are not ineligible under the Employer's Country laws or official regulations or pursuant to a decision of the United Nations Security Council;

- (j) **State-owned enterprise or institution**: [select the appropriate option and delete the other] [We are not a state-owned enterprise or institution] / [We are a state-owned enterprise or institution but meet the requirements of ITB 4.6];
- (k) **Commissions, gratuities and fees**: We have paid, or will pay the following commissions, gratuities, or fees with respect to the Bidding process or execution of the Contract: [insert complete name of each Recipient, its full address, the reason for which each commission or gratuity was paid and the amount and currency of each such commission or gratuity]

Name of	Address	Reason	Amount
Recipient			

(If none has been paid or is to be paid, indicate "none.")

- (1) [Delete if not appropriate, or amend to suit] We confirm that we understand the provisions relating to Standstill Period as described in this bidding document and the Procurement Regulations.
- (m)**Binding Contract**: We understand that this Bid, together with your written acceptance thereof included in your Letter of Acceptance, shall constitute a binding contract between us, until a formal contract is prepared and executed;
- (n) **Not Bound to Accept:** We understand that you are not bound to accept the lowest evaluated cost Bid, the Most Advantageous Bid or any other Bid that you may receive; and
- (o) **Fraud and Corruption:** We hereby certify that we have taken steps to ensure that no person acting for us or on our behalf engages in any type of Fraud and Corruption.

Name of the Bidder:

Name of the person duly authorized to sign the Bid on behalf of the Bidder:

Title of the person signing the Bid:

Signature of the person named above:

Date signed :

Bidder Information Form

[The Bidder shall fill in this Form in accordance with the instructions indicated below. No alterations to its format shall be permitted and no substitutions shall be accepted.]

Date: [insert date (as day, month and year) of Bid submission] RFB No.: LK-MHNIM-106298-NC-RFQ

1. Bidder's Name [insert Bidder's legal name]

2. In case of JV, legal name of each member : [insert legal name of each member in JV]

3. Bidder's actual or intended country of registration: [insert actual or intended country of registration]

4. Bidder's year of registration: [insert Bidder's year of registration]

5. Bidder's Address in country of registration: [insert Bidder's legal address in country of registration]

6. Bidder's Authorized Representative Information

Name: [insert Authorized Representative's name]

Address: [insert Authorized Representative's Address]

Telephone/Fax numbers: [insert Authorized Representative's telephone/fax numbers]

Email Address: [insert Authorized Representative's email address]

7. Attached are copies of original documents of [check the box(es) of the attached original documents]

□ Articles of Incorporation (or equivalent documents of constitution or association), and/or documents of registration of the legal entity named above, in accordance with ITB 4.4.

- □ In case of JV, letter of intent to form JV or JV agreement, in accordance with ITB 4.1.
- □ In case of state-owned enterprise or institution, in accordance with ITB 4.6 documents establishing:
 - Legal and financial autonomy
 - Operation under commercial law
 - Establishing that the Bidder is not under the supervision of the agency of the Employer

8. Included are the organizational chart, a list of Board of Directors, and the beneficial ownership. [If required under BDS ITB 45.1, the successful Bidder shall provide additional information on beneficial ownership, using the Beneficial Ownership Disclosure Form.]

Bid-Securing Declaration

[The Bidder shall fill in this form in accordance with the instructions indicated in brackets]

Date of this Bid submission: [insert date (as day, month and year) of Bid submission] **RFB No.: LK-MHNIM-106298-NC-RFQ**

To: The Project Director, Primary Healthcare System Strengthening Project

We, the undersigned, declare that:

- 1. We understand that, according to instructions to bidders, bids must be supported by a Bid-Securing Declaration;
- 2. We accept that we shall be suspended from being eligible for contract award in any contract where bids have being invited by any of the Procuring Entity as defined in the Procurement Guidelines published by National Procurement Agency of Sri Lanka, for the period of time of three years starting on the latest date set for closing of bids of this bid, if we:
 - (a) withdraw our Bid during the period of bid validity period specified; or
 - (b) having been notified of the acceptance of our Bid by Primary Healthcare System Strengthening Project, during the period of bid validity,
 - (i) fail or refuse to execute the Contract in connection hereto, or

(ii) fail or refuse to act in accordance with terms and conditions stipulated thereto.

- 3. We understand this bid securing shall expire if we are not the successful bidder, upon the earlier of (i) our receipt of a copy of your notification to the Bidder that the bidder was unsuccessful; or (ii) twenty-eight days after the expiration of our bid.
- 4. We understand that if we are a Joint Venture, the Bid Securing Declaration must be in the name of the Joint Venture that submits the bid. If the Joint Venture has not been legally constituted at the time of bidding, the Bid Securing Declaration shall be in the names of all future partners as named in the letter of intent.

Signed [insert signature(s) of authorized representative] In the Capacity of [insert title] Name [insert printed or typed name] Duly authorized to sign the bid for and on behalf of [insert authorizing entity] Dated on [insert day] day of [insert month], [insert year]

Schedule Forms

[The Bidder shall fill in these Forms in accordance with the instructions indicated. The list of line items in column 1 of the Activity Schedules shall coincide with the List of Non-Consulting Services specified in the Employer's Requirements.]

Activity Schedule

	Curr	encies in accorda	nnce with ITB 10	5	Alternative No:	NIM-106298-NC-RFQ 	
1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8
Service N°	Description of Services	Unit	Delivery Date	Quantity and physical unit	Unit price	Total Price per Service (Col. 5*6)	Taxes
[insert number of the Service]	[insert name of Services]		[insert delivery date at place of final destination per Service]	[insert number of units]	[insert unit price per unit]	[insert total price per unit]	
01	Production of video clip on primary healthcare service package for the promotion of primary healthcare reorganizing activities.	Video Clip		01			
02	Production of video clip on cardio vascular disease for the promotion of primary healthcare reorganizing activities.	2D Animation		01			
03	Production of video clip on cancer for the promotion of primary healthcare reorganizing activities.	2D Animation		01			
04	Production of video clip on diabetes for the promotion of primary healthcare reorganizing activities.	2D Animation		01			
05	Production of trailer video clip on on healthy star for the promotion of primary healthcare reorganizing activities.	Video Clip		01			
				Total Price	e		
Name of	Bidder :	Signa	ture of Bidder :			Date	

Method Statement

Work Plan

Form of Bid-Securing Declaration

[The Bidder shall fill in this Form in accordance with the instructions indicated.]

Date: [date (as day, month and year)] RFB No.: LK-MHNIM-106298-NC-RFQ

To: The Project Director, Primary Healthcare System Strengthening Project.

We, the undersigned, declare that:

We understand that, according to your conditions, Bids must be supported by a Bid-Securing Declaration.

We accept that we will automatically be suspended from being eligible for Bidding or submitting proposals in any contract with the Employer for the period of time of *[number of months or years]* starting on *[date]*, if we are in breach of our obligation(s) under the Bid conditions, because we:

- (a) have withdrawn our Bid during the period of Bid validity specified in the Letter of Bid; or
- (b) having been notified of the acceptance of our Bid by the Employer during the period of Bid validity, (i) fail to sign the Contract agreement; or (ii) fail or refuse to furnish the Performance Security, if required, in accordance with the ITB.

We understand this Bid Securing Declaration shall expire if we are not the successful Bidder, upon the earlier of (i) our receipt of your notification to us of the name of the successful Bidder; or (ii) twenty-eight days after the expiration of our Bid.

Name of the Bidder*_____

Name of the person duly authorized to sign the Bid on behalf of the Bidder**_____

Title of the person signing the Bid_____

Signature of the person named above_____

Date signed ______, ____,

*: In the case of the Bid submitted by joint venture specify the name of the Joint Venture as Bidder

**: Person signing the Bid shall have the power of attorney given by the Bidder attached to the Bid

[Note: In case of a Joint Venture, the Bid-Securing Declaration must be in the name of all members to the Joint Venture that submits the Bid.]

Section V - Eligible Countries

Eligibility for the Provision of Goods, Works and Services in Bank-Financed Procurement

In reference to ITB 4.8, for the information of the Bidders, at the present time firms, goods and services from the following countries are excluded from this Bidding process:

Under ITB 4.8 (a) *None* Under ITB 4.8 (b) *None* 45

Section VI - Fraud and Corruption

(Section VI shall not be modified)

1. Purpose

1.1 The Bank's Anti-Corruption Guidelines and this annex apply with respect to procurement under Bank Investment Project Financing operations.

2. Requirements

2.1 The Bank requires that Borrowers (including beneficiaries of Bank financing); bidders (applicants/proposers), consultants, contractors and suppliers; any sub-contractors, sub-consultants, service providers or suppliers; any agents (whether declared or not); and any of their personnel, observe the highest standard of ethics during the procurement process, selection and contract execution of Bank-financed contracts, and refrain from Fraud and Corruption.

2.2 To this end, the Bank:

- a. Defines, for the purposes of this provision, the terms set forth below as follows:
 - i. "corrupt practice" is the offering, giving, receiving, or soliciting, directly or indirectly, of anything of value to influence improperly the actions of another party;
 - ii. "fraudulent practice" is any act or omission, including misrepresentation, that knowingly or recklessly misleads, or attempts to mislead, a party to obtain financial or other benefit or to avoid an obligation;
 - iii. "collusive practice" is an arrangement between two or more parties designed to achieve an improper purpose, including to influence improperly the actions of another party;
 - iv. "coercive practice" is impairing or harming, or threatening to impair or harm, directly or indirectly, any party or the property of the party to influence improperly the actions of a party;
 - v. "obstructive practice" is:
 - (a) deliberately destroying, falsifying, altering, or concealing of evidence material to the investigation or making false statements to investigators in order to materially impede a Bank investigation into allegations of a corrupt, fraudulent, coercive, or collusive practice; and/or threatening, harassing, or intimidating any party to prevent it from disclosing its knowledge of matters relevant to the investigation or from pursuing the investigation; or
 - (b) acts intended to materially impede the exercise of the Bank's inspection and audit rights provided for under paragraph 2.2 e. below.
- b. Rejects a proposal for award if the Bank determines that the firm or individual recommended for award, any of its personnel, or its agents, or its sub-consultants, sub-contractors, service providers, suppliers and/ or their employees, has, directly or

indirectly, engaged in corrupt, fraudulent, collusive, coercive, or obstructive practices in competing for the contract in question;

- c. In addition to the legal remedies set out in the relevant Legal Agreement, may take other appropriate actions, including declaring misprocurement, if the Bank determines at any time that representatives of the Borrower or of a recipient of any part of the proceeds of the loan engaged in corrupt, fraudulent, collusive, coercive, or obstructive practices during the procurement process, selection and/or execution of the contract in question, without the Borrower having taken timely and appropriate action satisfactory to the Bank to address such practices when they occur, including by failing to inform the Bank in a timely manner at the time they knew of the practices;
- d. Pursuant to the Bank's Anti- Corruption Guidelines and in accordance with the Bank's prevailing sanctions policies and procedures, may sanction a firm or individual, either indefinitely or for a stated period of time, including by publicly declaring such firm or individual ineligible (i) to be awarded or otherwise benefit from a Bank-financed contract, financially or in any other manner;¹ (ii) to be a nominated² sub-contractor, consultant, manufacturer or supplier, or service provider of an otherwise eligible firm being awarded a Bank-financed contract; and (iii) to receive the proceeds of any loan made by the Bank or otherwise to participate further in the preparation or implementation of any Bank-financed project;
- e. Requires that a clause be included in bidding/request for proposals documents and in contracts financed by a Bank loan, requiring (i) bidders (applicants/proposers), consultants, contractors, and suppliers, and their sub-contractors, sub-consultants, service providers, suppliers, agents personnel, permit the Bank to inspect³ all accounts, records and other documents relating to the procurement process, selection and/or contract execution, and to have them audited by auditors appointed by the Bank.

¹ For the avoidance of doubt, a sanctioned party's ineligibility to be awarded a contract shall include, without limitation, (i) applying for pre-qualification, expressing interest in a consultancy, and bidding, either directly or as a nominated subcontractor, nominated consultant, nominated manufacturer or supplier, or nominated service provider, in respect of such contract, and (ii) entering into an addendum or amendment introducing a material modification to any existing contract.

A nominated sub-contractor, nominated consultant, nominated manufacturer or supplier, or nominated service provider (different names are used depending on the particular bidding document) is one which has been: (i) included by the bidder in its pre-qualification application or bid because it brings specific and critical experience and know-how that allow the bidder to meet the qualification requirements for the particular bid; or (ii) appointed by the Borrower.

³ Inspections in this context usually are investigative (i.e., forensic) in nature. They involve fact-finding activities undertaken by the Bank or persons appointed by the Bank to address specific matters related to investigations/audits, such as evaluating the veracity of an allegation of possible Fraud and Corruption, through the appropriate mechanisms. Such activity includes but is not limited to: accessing and examining a firm's or individual's financial records and information, and making copies thereof as relevant; accessing and examining any other documents, data and information (whether in hard copy or electronic format) deemed relevant for the investigation/audit, and making copies thereof as relevant; interviewing staff and other relevant individuals; performing physical inspections and site visits; and obtaining third party verification of information.

Part II – Employer's Requirement

Section VII - Activity Schedule

1. Objective:-

Production of 5 short video clips for the promotion of primary healthcare reorganizing activities.

2. <u>Specifications</u>

2.1 General

The documentary is aimed at raising awareness of the general public and different age groups covering five themes as Primary Health Care (PHC) service package, Cardio Vascular Disease, Cancer, Diabetes and Trailer on Healthy Star Campaign.

The final product to be five full HD video clips of approximately 2-3 minute duration depending on the script ending with a narrative message.

Th	ieme	Target audience	Duration of the	Mode	Remarks
1.	PHC service package	Whole population	video 3 minutes	Short Video	Other than the main production , All clips
2.	Cardio Vascular Disease	Whole population	2 minutes	2D Animation	should be in MP4 version for uploading to Social Media
3.	Cancer	Whole population	2 minutes	2D Animation	
4.	Diabetes	Whole population	2 minutes	2D Animation	
5.	Trailer on Healthy Star Campaign	Whole population	2 minutes	Short Video	

- Expected information should be conveyed to the general public through an **attractive, colorful electronic media message** using **live models**.
- Using the given information, all bidders should develop a draft script including the dialogues which should be produced for consideration in evaluation.
- Outline of the electronic media message to be developed, models, props and professionals (where relevant) should be clearly indicated and the settings should be identified and handed over with the quotation.

2.2 Specific

- a. Shooting format Ultra HD (4K or 4K Cinema)
- b. Post production Professional Software Computer Graphics Animation / VFX
- c. Professional narrator should be involved
- d. Music Do not allow copy right tracks

Theme	Mode	Medium	Content
1. PHC service package	Short Video	Sinhala Language and Tamil Language	 Vehicle with a Mobile unit for Screening for Non-Communicable Disease (NCD) is going on the way for a program Two women working in a rubber state are discussing about the purpose of screening for NCDs Mobile clinic is going on at a temple premise in the intention of training service providers & giving the service for the empaneled population Registering population, issuing Personal Health Records (PHRs), Data entering for the Health Information Management System (HIMS), screening for NCDs, Conducting Health Promotional & Counseling Programs, Grievances Redress Mechanism (GRM) and other essential services providing through a PMCI.

			Reference; PSSP web site (Road Map & other documents under the resources)
2. Cardio Vascular Disease	2D Animation	Dubbing in Sinhala Language and Tamil Language	 What are the major risk factors for Cardio Vascular Disease(CVD)? How can we identify symptoms? What are the measures can be taken to prevent CVDs? What are the available services?
3. Cancer	2D Animation	Dubbing in Sinhala Language and Tamil Language	 What are the major risk factors for Cancer? How can we identify symptoms? What are the measures can be taken to prevent Cancer? What are the available services?
4. Diabetes	2D Animation	Dubbing in Sinhala Language and Tamil Language	 What are the major risk factors for Diabetes? How can we identify symptoms? What are the measures can be taken to prevent Diabetics? What are the available services?
5. Trailer on Healthy Star Campaign	Short Video	Sinhala Language and Tamil Language	 Who are eligible? What are the eligible talents will be evaluated? How these talents will be evaluated? What's the program structure?

Selected bidder will be called for several meetings with the Director, PSSP and further meetings would be held to provide information, clarifications and also to review the process from time to time.

Below mentioned items/drafts should be provided for the approval of the Director/PSSP at the first meeting.

- The bidder should provide pictures of the actors
- If, the models have appeared in previous films/ documentaries/advertisements etc. should produce those for evaluation
- The bidder should provide pictures of the settings
- The bidder should provide draft background music/songs

Obtaining the consent for acting (from the parents of those who are under 18) should be done by the producers.

Before finalizing the final products, those should be provided for the approval of the Director/ Gender Focal Point- FHB.

Final Product

- Final product must be in,
 - i. Sinhala language (10 copies in each theme)
 - ii. Tamil language (10 copies in each theme)

Each video documentary should be submitted in Sinhala & Tamil versions High quality data file DVD.

(All these needs to be completed with a cover design and graphics)

Part III – Conditions of Contract and Contract Forms

Section VIII - General Conditions of Contract

Table of Clauses

A.	General	Provisions	57
	1.1	Definitions	57
	1.2	Applicable Law	58
	1.3	Language	58
	1.4	Notices	58
	1.5	Location	59
	1.6	Authorized Representatives	59
	1.7	Inspection and Audit by the Bank	59
	1.8	Taxes and Duties	59
2.	Commen	cement, Completion, Modification, and Termination of Contract	59
	2.1	Effectiveness of Contract	59
	2.3	Intended Completion Date	60
	2.4	Modification	60
	2.4.1	Value Engineering	60
	2.5	Force Majeure	61
	2.6	Termination	62
3.	Obligatio	ns of the Service Provider	63
	3.1	General	63
	3.2	Conflict of Interests	63
	3.3	Confidentiality	64
	3.4	Insurance to be Taken Out by the Service Provider	64
	3.5	Service Provider's Actions Requiring Employer's Prior Approval	64
	3.6	Reporting Obligations	65
	3.7	Documents Prepared by the Service Provider to Be the Property of the Employer	65
	3.8	Liquidated Damages	65
	3.9	Performance Security	66

	3.10	Fraud and Corruption	66
	3.11	Sustainable Procurement	66
4.	Service P	rovider's Personnel	66
	4.1	Description of Personnel	66
	4.2	Removal and/or Replacement of Personnel	66
5.	Obligatio	ons of the Employer	67
	5.1	Assistance and Exemptions	67
	5.2	Change in the Applicable Law	67
	5.3	Services and Facilities	67
6.	Payment	s to the Service Provider	67
	6.1	Lump-Sum Remuneration	67
	6.2	Contract Price	67
	6.3	Payment for Additional Services, and Performance Incentive Compensation	67
	6.4	Terms and Conditions of Payment	68
	6.5	Interest on Delayed Payments	68
	6.6	Price Adjustment	68
	6.7	Dayworks	69
7.	Quality (Control	69
	7.1	Identifying Defects	69
	7.2	Correction of Defects, and	69
8.	Settleme	nt of Disputes	70
	8.1	Amicable Settlement	70
	8.2	Dispute Settlement	70

Section VIII - General Conditions of Contract

A. General Provisions

1.1 Definitions Unless the context otherwise requires, the following terms whenever used in this Contract have the following meanings:

- (a) The Adjudicator is the person appointed jointly by the Employer and the Service Provider to resolve disputes in the first instance, as provided for in Sub-Clause 8.2 hereunder.
- (b) "Activity Schedule" is the priced and completed list of items of Services to be performed by the Service Provider forming part of his Bid;
- (c) "Bank" means the International Bank for Reconstruction and Development, Washington, D.C., U.S.A.;
- (c) "Association" means the International Development Association, Washington, D.C., U.S.A.;
- (d) "Completion Date" means the date of completion of the Services by the Service Provider as certified by the Employer
- (e) "Contract" means the Contract signed by the Parties, to which these General Conditions of Contract (GCC) are attached, together with all the documents listed in Clause 1 of such signed Contract;
- (f) "Contract Price" means the price to be paid for the performance of the Services, in accordance with Clause 6;
- (g) "Dayworks" means varied work inputs subject to payment on a time basis for the Service Provider's employees and equipment, in addition to payments for associated materials and administration.
- (h) "Employer" means the party who employs the Service Provider
- (i) "Foreign Currency" means any currency other than the currency of the country of the Employer;
- (j) "GCC" means these General Conditions of Contract;
- (k) "Government" means the Government of the Employer's Country;
- (l) "Local Currency" means the currency of the country of the Employer;

- (m) "Member," in case the Service Provider consist of a joint venture of more than one entity, means any of these entities; "Members" means all these entities, and "Member in Charge" means the entity specified in the SC to act on their behalf in exercising all the Service Provider' rights and obligations towards the Employer under this Contract;
- (n) "Party" means the Employer or the Service Provider, as the case may be, and "Parties" means both of them;
- (o) "Personnel" means persons hired by the Service Provider or by any Subcontractor as employees and assigned to the performance of the Services or any part thereof;
- (p) "Service Provider" is a person or corporate body whose Bid to provide the Services has been accepted by the Employer;
- (q) "Service Provider's Bid" means the completed Bidding Document submitted by the Service Provider to the Employer
- (r) "SCC" means the Special Conditions of Contract by which the GCC may be amended or supplemented;
- (s) "Specifications" means the specifications of the service included in the Bidding Document submitted by the Service Provider to the Employer
- (t) "Services" means the work to be performed by the Service Provider pursuant to this Contract, as described in Appendix A; and in the Specifications and Schedule of Activities included in the Service Provider's Bid.
- (u) "Subcontractor" means any entity to which the Service Provider subcontracts any part of the Services in accordance with the provisions of Sub-Clauses 3.5 and 4.
- **1.2 Applicable Law** The Contract shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the Employer's Country, unless otherwise **specified in the Special Conditions of Contract (SCC).**
- **1.3 Language** This Contract has been executed in the language **specified in the SCC**, which shall be the binding and controlling language for all matters relating to the meaning or interpretation of this Contract.
- **1.4 Notices** Any notice, request, or consent made pursuant to this Contract shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been made when delivered in person to an authorized representative of the Party to whom the communication is addressed, or when sent by registered mail, telex,

telegram, or facsimile to such Party at the address **specified in the SCC.**

- **1.5 Location** The Services shall be performed at such locations as are specified in Appendix A, in the specifications and, where the location of a particular task is not so specified, at such locations, whether in the Government's country or elsewhere, as the Employer may approve.
- **1.6 Authorized Representatives** Any action required or permitted to be taken, and any document required or permitted to be executed, under this Contract by the Employer or the Service Provider may be taken or executed by the officials **specified in the SCC.**
- Pursuant to paragraph 2.2 e. of Attachment 1 to the General **1.7 Inspection and** Audit by the Conditions, the Service Provider shall permit and shall cause its Bank subcontractors and subconsultants to permit, the Bank and/or persons appointed by the Bank to inspect the Site and/or the accounts and records relating to the procurement process, selection and/or contract execution, and to have such accounts and records audited by auditors appointed by the Bank if requested by the Bank. The Service Provider's and its Subcontractors' and subconsultants' attention is drawn to Sub-Clause 3.10 which provides, inter alia, that acts intended to materially impede the exercise of the Bank's inspection and audit rights constitute a prohibited practice subject to contract termination (as well as to a determination of ineligibility pursuant to the Bank's prevailing sanctions procedures).
- **1.8 Taxes and** Duties The Service Provider, Subcontractors, and their Personnel shall pay such taxes, duties, fees, and other impositions as may be levied under the Applicable Law, the amount of which is deemed to have been included in the Contract Price.

2. Commencement, Completion, Modification, and Termination of Contract

2.1 Effectiveness of Contract shall come into effect on the date the Contract is signed by both parties or such other later date as may be stated in the SCC.

2.2 Commencement of Services

2.2.1 Program Before commencement of the Services, the Service Provider shall submit to the Employer for approval a Program showing the general methods, arrangements, order and timing for all activities. The Services shall be carried out in accordance with the approved Program as updated.

2.2.2 Starting Date	days a	ervice Provider shall start carrying out the Services thirty (30) after the date the Contract becomes effective, or at such other s may be specified in the SCC.		
2.3 Intended Completion Date	Provid Date, compl liable	s terminated earlier pursuant to Sub-Clause 2.6, the Service der shall complete the activities by the Intended Completion as is specified in the SCC. If the Service Provider does not lete the activities by the Intended Completion Date, it shall be to pay liquidated damage as per Sub-Clause 3.8. In this case, completion Date will be the date of completion of all activities.		
2.4 Modification	any m may o not be	Modification of the terms and conditions of this Contract, including any modification of the scope of the Services or of the Contract Price, may only be made by written agreement between the Parties and shall not be effective until the consent of the Bank or of the Association, as the case may be, has been obtained.		
2.4.1 Value Engineering	engii conti	Service Provider may prepare, at its own cost, a value neering proposal at any time during the performance of the ract. The value engineering proposal shall, at a minimum, ide the following;		
	(a)	the proposed change(s), and a description of the difference to the existing contract requirements;		
	(b)	a full cost/benefit analysis of the proposed change(s) including a description and estimate of costs (including life cycle costs, if applicable) the Employer may incur in implementing the value engineering proposal; and		
	(c)	a description of any effect(s) of the change on performance/functionality.		
		Employer may accept the value engineering proposal if the osal demonstrates benefits that:		
	(a)	accelerates the delivery period; or		
	(b)	reduces the Contract Price or the life cycle costs to the Employer; or		
	(c)	improves the quality, efficiency, safety or sustainability of the services; or		

	(d)	yields any other benefits to the Employer,		
	with	without compromising the necessary functions of the Facilities.		
		If the value engineering proposal is approved by the Employ and results in:		
	(a)	a reduction of the Contract Price; the amount to be paid to the Service Provider shall be the percentage specified in the SCC of the reduction in the Contract Price; or		
	(b)	 (b) an increase in the Contract Price; but results in a reduction in life cycle costs due to any benefit described in (a) to (d) above, the amount to be paid to the Service Provider shall be the full increase in the Contract Price. 		
2.5 Force Majeure				
2.5.1 Definition	For the purposes of this Contract, "Force Majeure" means an event which is beyond the reasonable control of a Party and which makes a Party's performance of its obligations under the Contract impossible or so impractical as to be considered impossible under the circumstances.			
2.5.2 No Breach of Contract	contra this C Majeu taken measu Contra	ailure of a Party to fulfill any of its obligations under the ct shall not be considered to be a breach of, or default under, ontract insofar as such inability arises from an event of Force tre, provided that the Party affected by such an event (a) has all reasonable precautions, due care and reasonable alternative tres in order to carry out the terms and conditions of this act, and (b) has informed the other Party as soon as possible the occurrence of such an event.		
2.5.3 Extension of Time	compl the tin	period within which a Party shall, pursuant to this Contract, ete any action or task, shall be extended for a period equal to ne during which such Party was unable to perform such action esult of Force Majeure.		
2.5.4 Payments	of an to con be re incurr	g the period of their inability to perform the Services as a result event of Force Majeure, the Service Provider shall be entitled tinue to be paid under the terms of this Contract, as well as to imbursed for additional costs reasonably and necessarily ed by them during such period for the purposes of the Services reactivating the Service after the end of such period.		

2.6 Termination

2.6.1 By the Employer	(30) give	Employer may terminate this Contract, by not less than thirty days' written notice of termination to the Service Provider, to be en after the occurrence of any of the events specified in agraphs (a) through (d) of this Sub-Clause 2.6.1:
	(a)	if the Service Provider does not remedy a failure in the performance of its obligations under the Contract, within thirty (30) days after being notified or within any further period as the Employer may have subsequently approved in writing;
	(b)	if the Service Provider become insolvent or bankrupt;
	(c)	if, as the result of Force Majeure, the Service Provider is unable to perform a material portion of the Services for a period of not less than sixty (60) days; or
	(d)	if the Service Provider, in the judgment of the Employer has engaged in Fraud and Corruption, as defined in paragraph 2.2 a. of Attachment 1 to the GCC, in competing for or in executing the Contract
2.6.2 By the Service Provider	thirt give	Service Provider may terminate this Contract, by not less than ty (30) days' written notice to the Employer, such notice to be en after the occurrence of any of the events specified in agraphs (a) and (b) of this Sub-Clause 2.6.2:
	(a)	if the Employer fails to pay any monies due to the Service Provider pursuant to this Contract and not subject to dispute pursuant to Clause 7 within forty-five (45) days after receiving written notice from the Service Provider that such payment is overdue; or
	(b)	if, as the result of Force Majeure, the Service Provider is unable to perform a material portion of the Services for a period of not less than sixty (60) days.
2.6.3 Suspension of Loan or Credit	Emp	he event that the World Bank suspends the loan or Credit to the ployer, from which part of the payments to the Service Provider being made:
	(a)	The Employer is obligated to notify the Service Provider of

(a) The Employer is obligated to notify the Service Provider of such suspension within 7 days of having received the World Bank's suspension notice.

(b) If the Service Provider has not received sums due to by the due date stated in the SCC in accordance with Sub-Clause 6.5 the Service Provider may immediately issue a 14 day termination notice.

2.6.4 Payment Upon termination of this Contract pursuant to Sub-Clauses 2.6.1 or 2.6.2, the Employer shall make the following payments to the Service Provider: n

- (a) remuneration pursuant to Clause 6 for Services satisfactorily performed prior to the effective date of termination;
- (b) except in the case of termination pursuant to paragraphs (a), (b),
 (d) of Sub-Clause 2.6.1, reimbursement of any reasonable cost incident to the prompt and orderly termination of the Contract, including the cost of the return travel of the Personnel.

3. Obligations of the Service Provider

3.1 General The Service Provider shall perform the Services in accordance with the Specifications and the Activity Schedule, and carry out its obligations with all due diligence, efficiency, and economy, in accordance with generally accepted professional techniques and practices, and shall observe sound management practices, and employ appropriate advanced technology and safe methods. The Service Provider shall always act, in respect of any matter relating to this Contract or to the Services, as faithful adviser to the Employer, and shall at all times support and safeguard the Employer's legitimate interests in any dealings with Subcontractors or third parties.

3.2 Conflict of Interests

The remuneration of the Service Provider pursuant to Clause 6 shall 3.2.1 Service **Provider** constitute the Service Provider's sole remuneration in connection Not to with this Contract or the Services, and the Service Provider shall not **Benefit** accept for their own benefit any trade commission, discount, or from similar payment in connection with activities pursuant to this Commissio Contract or to the Services or in the discharge of their obligations under the Contract, and the Service Provider shall use their best ns and efforts to ensure that the Personnel, any Subcontractors, and agents **Discounts.** of either of them similarly shall not receive any such additional remuneration.

3.2.2 Service Provider agree that, during the term of this Contract and after its termination, the Service Provider and its affiliates, as well as any Subcontractor and any of its affiliates, shall be disqualified from

g

Employer's Prior Approval

Activities

Affiliates providing goods, works, or Services (other than the Services and any Not to be continuation thereof) for any project resulting from or closely related Otherwise to the Services. Interested in **Project**

Neither the Service Provider nor its Subcontractors nor the Personnel 3.2.3 Prohibitio shall engage, either directly or indirectly, in any of the following n of activities: Conflictin

- (a) during the term of this Contract, any business or professional activities in the Government's country which would conflict with the activities assigned to them under this Contract;
 - during the term of this Contract, neither the Service Provider (b) nor their Subcontractors shall hire public employees in active duty or on any type of leave, to perform any activity under this Contract:
 - after the termination of this Contract, such other activities as (c) may be specified in the SCC.
- **3.3 Confidentiality** The Service Provider, its Subcontractors, and the Personnel of either of them shall not, either during the term or within two (2) years after the expiration of this Contract, disclose any proprietary or confidential information relating to the Project, the Services, this Contract, or the Employer's business or operations without the prior written consent of the Employer.
- The Service Provider (a) shall take out and maintain, and shall cause **3.4 Insurance to be** Taken Out by any Subcontractors to take out and maintain, at its (or the the Service Subcontractors', as the case may be) own cost but on terms and conditions approved by the Employer, insurance against the risks, Provider and for the coverage, as shall be specified in the SCC; and (b) at the Employer's request, shall provide evidence to the Employer showing that such insurance has been taken out and maintained and that the current premiums have been paid.

3.5 Service The Service Provider shall obtain the Employer's prior approval in writing before taking any of the following actions: **Provider's** Actions Requiring

- entering into a subcontract for the performance of any part of (a) the Services,
- (b) appointing such members of the Personnel not listed by name in Appendix C ("Key Personnel and Subcontractors"),
- (c) changing the Program of activities; and

- (d) any other action that may be **specified in the SCC.**
- **3.6 Reporting Obligations** The Service Provider shall submit to the Employer the reports and documents specified in Appendix B in the form, in the numbers, and within the periods set forth in the said Appendix.
- 3.7 Documents
 Prepared by the Service
 Provider to Be the Property of the Employer
 All plans, drawings, specifications, designs, reports, and other documents and software submitted by the Service Provider in accordance with Sub-Clause 3.6 shall become and remain the property of the Employer, and the Service Provider shall, not later than upon termination or expiration of this Contract, deliver all such documents and software to the Employer, together with a detailed inventory thereof. The Service Provider may retain a copy of such documents, if any, shall be specified in the SCC.

3.8 Liquidated Damages

Duningeb

- 3.8.1 Payments of The Service Provider shall pay liquidated damages to the Employer at the rate per day stated in the SCC for each day that the Completion Date is later than the Intended Completion Date. The total amount of liquidated damages shall not exceed the amount defined in the SCC. The Employer may deduct liquidated damages from payments due to the Service Provider. Payment of liquidated damages shall not affect the Service Provider's liabilities.
- **3.8.2 Correction** for Overpayment If the Intended Completion Date is extended after liquidated damages have been paid, the Employer shall correct any overpayment of liquidated damages by the Service Provider by adjusting the next payment certificate. The Service Provider shall be paid interest on the overpayment, calculated from the date of payment to the date of repayment, at the rates specified in Sub-Clause 6.5.
- **3.8.3 Lack of performanc e penalty** If the Service Provider has not corrected a Defect within the time specified in the Employer's notice, a penalty for Lack of performance will be paid by the Service Provider. The amount to be paid will be calculated as a percentage of the cost of having the Defect corrected, assessed as described in Sub-Clause 7.2 and **specified in the SCC.**

3.9 Performance	The Service Provider shall provide the Performance Security to the
Security	Employer no later than the date specified in the Letter of acceptance.
	The Performance Security shall be issued in an amount and form and
	by a bank or surety acceptable to the Employer, and denominated in
	the types and proportions of the currencies in which the Contract
	Price is payable. The performance Security shall be valid until a date
	28 days from the Completion Date of the Contract in case of a bank
	guarantee, and until one year from the Completion Date of the
	Contract in the case of a Performance Bond.

3.10 Fraud and CorruptionThe Bank requires compliance with the Bank's Anti-Corruption Guidelines and its prevailing sanctions policies and procedures as set forth in the WBG's Sanctions Framework, as set forth in the Attachment 1 to the GCC.

> The Employer requires the Service Provider to disclose any commissions or fees that may have been paid or are to be paid to agents or any other party with respect to the bidding process or execution of the Contract. The information disclosed must include at least the name and address of the agent or other party, the amount and currency, and the purpose of the commission, gratuity or fee.

3.11 Sustainable The Service Provider shall conform to the sustainable procurement contractual provisions, if and as specified in the SCC.

4. Service Provider's Personnel

- 4.1 Description of Personnel
 The titles, agreed job descriptions, minimum qualifications, and estimated periods of engagement in the carrying out of the Services of the Service Provider's Key Personnel are described in Appendix C. The Key Personnel and Subcontractors listed by title as well as by name in Appendix C are hereby approved by the Employer.
- 4.2 Removal and/or Replacement of Personnel
 (a) Except as the Employer may otherwise agree, no changes shall be made in the Key Personnel. If, for any reason beyond the reasonable control of the Service Provider, it becomes necessary to replace any of the Key Personnel, the Service Provider shall provide as a replacement a person of equivalent or better qualifications.
 - (b) If the Employer finds that any of the Personnel have (i) committed serious misconduct or have been charged with having committed a criminal action, or (ii) have reasonable cause to be dissatisfied with the performance of any of the Personnel, then the Service Provider shall, at the Employer's written request specifying the grounds thereof, provide as a

replacement a person with qualifications and experience acceptable to the Employer.

(c) The Service Provider shall have no claim for additional costs arising out of or incidental to any removal and/or replacement of Personnel.

5. Obligations of the Employer

- 5.1 Assistance and ExemptionsThe Employer shall use its best efforts to ensure that the Government shall provide the Service Provider such assistance and exemptions as specified in the SCC.
- 5.2 Change in the Applicable Law If, after the date of this Contract, there is any change in the Applicable Law with respect to taxes and duties which increases or decreases the cost of the Services rendered by the Service Provider, then the remuneration and reimbursable expenses otherwise payable to the Service Provider under this Contract shall be increased or decreased accordingly by agreement between the Parties, and corresponding adjustments shall be made to the amounts referred to in Sub-Clauses 6.2 (a) or (b), as the case may be.
- **5.3 Services and**
FacilitiesThe Employer shall make available to the Service Provider the Services
and Facilities listed under Appendix F.

6. Payments to the Service Provider

- 6.1 Lump-Sum Remuneration The Service Provider's remuneration shall not exceed the Contract Price and shall be a fixed lump-sum including all Subcontractors' costs, and all other costs incurred by the Service Provider in carrying out the Services described in Appendix A. Except as provided in Sub-Clause 5.2, the Contract Price may only be increased above the amounts stated in Sub-Clause 6.2 if the Parties have agreed to additional payments in accordance with Sub-Clauses 2.4 and 6.3.
- **6.2 Contract Price** (a) The price payable in local currency is **set forth in the SCC.**
 - (b) The price payable in foreign currency is set forth in the SCC.
- 6.3 Payment for Additional Services, and Performance Incentive
 6.3.1 For the purpose of determining the remuneration due for additional Services as may be agreed under Sub-Clause 2.4, a breakdown of the lump-sum price is provided in Appendices D and E.
- **Compensation** 6.3.2 **If the SCC so specify,** the service provider shall be paid performance incentive compensation as set out in the Performance Incentive Compensation appendix.

6.4 Terms and	Payments will be made to the Service Provider according to the
Conditions of	payment schedule stated in the SCC. Unless otherwise stated in the
Payment	SCC, the advance payment (Advance for Mobilization, Materials and
	Supplies) shall be made against the provision by the Service Provider
	of a bank guarantee for the same amount, and shall be valid for the
	period stated in the SCC. Any other payment shall be made after the
	conditions listed in the SCC for such payment have been met, and the
	Service Provider have submitted an invoice to the Employer specifying
	the amount due.

- 6.5 Interest on Delayed If the Employer has delayed payments beyond fifteen (15) days after the due date stated in the SCC, interest shall be paid to the Service Provider for each day of delay at the rate stated in the SCC.
- 6.6 Price
 Adjustment
 6.6.1 Prices shall be adjusted for fluctuations in the cost of inputs only if provided for in the SCC. If so provided, the amounts certified in each payment certificate, after deducting for Advance Payment, shall be adjusted by applying the respective price adjustment factor to the payment amounts due in each currency. A separate formula of the type indicated below applies to each Contract currency:

$P_c = A_c + B_c Lmc/Loc + C_c Imc/Ioc$

Where:

 P_c is the adjustment factor for the portion of the Contract Price payable in a specific currency "c".

 A_c , B_c and C_c are coefficients specified in the SCC, representing: A_c the nonadjustable portion; B_c the adjustable portion relative to labor costs and C_c the adjustable portion for other inputs, of the Contract Price payable in that specific currency "c"; and

Lmc is the index prevailing at the first day of the month of the corresponding invoice date and Loc is the index prevailing 28 days before Bid opening for labor; both in the specific currency "c".

Imc is the index prevailing at the first day of the month of the corresponding invoice date and Ioc is the index prevailing 28 days before Bid opening for other inputs payable; both in the specific currency "c".

If a price adjustment factor is applied to payments made in a currency other than the currency of the source of the index for a particular indexed input, a correction factor Zo/Zn will be applied to the respective component factor of pn for the formula of the relevant currency. Zo is the number of units of currency of the

country of the index, equivalent to one unit of the currency payment on the date of the base index, and Zn is the corresponding number of such currency units on the date of the current index.

- 6.6.2 If the value of the index is changed after it has been used in a calculation, the calculation shall be corrected and an adjustment made in the next payment certificate. The index value shall be deemed to take account of all changes in cost due to fluctuations in costs.
- 6.7 Dayworks6.7.1 If applicable, the Daywork rates in the Service Provider's Bid shall be used for small additional amounts of Services only when the Employer has given written instructions in advance for additional services to be paid in that way.
 - 6.7.2 All work to be paid for as Dayworks shall be recorded by the Service Provider on forms approved by the Employer. Each completed form shall be verified and signed by the Employer representative as indicated in Sub-Clause 1.6 within two days of the Services being performed.
 - 6.7.3 The Service Provider shall be paid for Dayworks subject to obtaining signed Dayworks forms as indicated in Sub-Clause 6.7.2

7. Quality Control

7.1 Identifying Defects
The principle and modalities of Inspection of the Services by the Employer shall be as indicated in the SCC. The Employer shall check the Service Provider's performance and notify him of any Defects that are found. Such checking shall not affect the Service Provider's responsibilities. The Employer may instruct the Service Provider to search for a Defect and to uncover and test any service that the Employer considers may have a Defect. Defect Liability Period is as defined in the SCC.

7.2 Correction of Defects, and Lack of Performance Penalty

- (a) The Employer shall give notice to the Service Provider of any Defects before the end of the Contract. The Defects liability period shall be extended for as long as Defects remain to be corrected.
- (b) Every time notice a Defect is given, the Service Provider shall correct the notified Defect within the length of time specified by the Employer's notice.

(c) If the Service Provider has not corrected a Defect within the time specified in the Employer's notice, the Employer will assess the cost of having the Defect corrected, the Service Provider will pay this amount, and a Penalty for Lack of Performance calculated as described in Sub-Clause 3.8.

8. Settlement of Disputes

- **8.1 Amicable** The Parties shall use their best efforts to settle amicably all disputes arising out of or in connection with this Contract or its interpretation.
- 8.2 Dispute Settlement
 8.2.1 If any dispute arises between the Employer and the Service Provider in connection with, or arising out of, the Contract or the provision of the Services, whether during carrying out the Services or after their completion, the matter shall be referred to the Adjudicator within 14 days of the notification of disagreement of one party to the other.
 - 8.2.2 The Adjudicator shall give a decision in writing within 28 days of receipt of a notification of a dispute.
 - 8.2.3 The Adjudicator shall be paid by the hour at the rate **specified in the BDS and SCC**, together with reimbursable expenses of the types **specified in the SCC**, and the cost shall be divided equally between the Employer and the Service Provider, whatever decision is reached by the Adjudicator. Either party may refer a decision of the Adjudicator to an Arbitrator within 28 days of the Adjudicator's written decision. If neither party refers the dispute to arbitration within the above 28 days, the Adjudicator's decision will be final and binding.
 - 8.2.4 The arbitration shall be conducted in accordance with the arbitration procedure published by the institution named and in the place **shown in the SCC.**
 - 8.2.5 Should the Adjudicator resign or die, or should the Employer and the Service Provider agree that the Adjudicator is not functioning in accordance with the provisions of the Contract, a new Adjudicator will be jointly appointed by the Employer and the Service Provider. In case of disagreement between the Employer and the Service Provider, within 30 days, the Adjudicator shall be designated by the Appointing Authority **designated in the SCC** at the request of either party, within 14 days of receipt of such request.

ATTACHMENT 1

Fraud and Corruption

(Text in this Attachment shall not be modified)

1. Purpose

1.1 The Bank's Anti-Corruption Guidelines and this annex apply with respect to procurement under Bank Investment Project Financing operations.

2. Requirements

2.1 The Bank requires that Borrowers (including beneficiaries of Bank financing); bidders (applicants/proposers), consultants, contractors and suppliers; any sub-contractors, sub-consultants, service providers or suppliers; any agents (whether declared or not); and any of their personnel, observe the highest standard of ethics during the procurement process, selection and contract execution of Bank-financed contracts, and refrain from Fraud and Corruption.

2.2 To this end, the Bank:

- a. Defines, for the purposes of this provision, the terms set forth below as follows:
 - i. "corrupt practice" is the offering, giving, receiving, or soliciting, directly or indirectly, of anything of value to influence improperly the actions of another party;
 - ii. "fraudulent practice" is any act or omission, including misrepresentation, that knowingly or recklessly misleads, or attempts to mislead, a party to obtain financial or other benefit or to avoid an obligation;
 - iii. "collusive practice" is an arrangement between two or more parties designed to achieve an improper purpose, including to influence improperly the actions of another party;
 - iv. "coercive practice" is impairing or harming, or threatening to impair or harm, directly or indirectly, any party or the property of the party to influence improperly the actions of a party;
 - v. "obstructive practice" is:
 - (a) deliberately destroying, falsifying, altering, or concealing of evidence material to the investigation or making false statements to investigators in order to materially impede a Bank investigation into allegations of a corrupt, fraudulent, coercive, or collusive practice; and/or threatening, harassing, or intimidating any party to prevent it from disclosing its knowledge of matters relevant to the investigation or from pursuing the investigation; or
 - (b) acts intended to materially impede the exercise of the Bank's inspection and audit rights provided for under paragraph 2.2 e. below.

- b. Rejects a proposal for award if the Bank determines that the firm or individual recommended for award, any of its personnel, or its agents, or its sub-consultants, sub-contractors, service providers, suppliers and/ or their employees, has, directly or indirectly, engaged in corrupt, fraudulent, collusive, coercive, or obstructive practices in competing for the contract in question;
- c. In addition to the legal remedies set out in the relevant Legal Agreement, may take other appropriate actions, including declaring misprocurement, if the Bank determines at any time that representatives of the Borrower or of a recipient of any part of the proceeds of the loan engaged in corrupt, fraudulent, collusive, coercive, or obstructive practices during the procurement process, selection and/or execution of the contract in question, without the Borrower having taken timely and appropriate action satisfactory to the Bank to address such practices when they occur, including by failing to inform the Bank in a timely manner at the time they knew of the practices;
- d. Pursuant to the Bank's Anti- Corruption Guidelines and in accordance with the Bank's prevailing sanctions policies and procedures, may sanction a firm or individual, either indefinitely or for a stated period of time, including by publicly declaring such firm or individual ineligible (i) to be awarded or otherwise benefit from a Bank-financed contract, financially or in any other manner;¹ (ii) to be a nominated² sub-contractor, consultant, manufacturer or supplier, or service provider of an otherwise eligible firm being awarded a Bank-financed contract; and (iii) to receive the proceeds of any loan made by the Bank or otherwise to participate further in the preparation or implementation of any Bank-financed project;
- e. Requires that a clause be included in bidding/request for proposals documents and in contracts financed by a Bank loan, requiring (i) bidders (applicants/proposers), consultants, contractors, and suppliers, and their sub-contractors, sub-consultants, service providers, suppliers, agents personnel, permit the Bank to inspect³ all accounts, records and other documents relating to procurement process, selection and/or contract execution, and to have them audited by auditors appointed by the Bank.

¹ For the avoidance of doubt, a sanctioned party's ineligibility to be awarded a contract shall include, without limitation, (i) applying for pre-qualification, expressing interest in a consultancy, and bidding, either directly or as a nominated sub-contractor, nominated consultant, nominated manufacturer or supplier, or nominated service provider, in respect of such contract, and (ii) entering into an addendum or amendment introducing a material modification to any existing contract.

² A nominated sub-contractor, nominated consultant, nominated manufacturer or supplier, or nominated service provider (different names are used depending on the particular bidding document) is one which has been: (i) included by the bidder in its pre-qualification application or bid because it brings specific and critical experience and know-how that allow the bidder to meet the qualification requirements for the particular bid; or (ii) appointed by the Borrower.

³ Inspections in this context usually are investigative (i.e., forensic) in nature. They involve fact-finding activities undertaken by the Bank or persons appointed by the Bank to address specific matters related to investigations/audits, such as evaluating the veracity of an allegation of possible Fraud and Corruption, through the appropriate mechanisms. Such activity includes but is not limited to: accessing and examining a firm's or individual's financial records and information, and making copies thereof as relevant; accessing and examining any other documents, data and information (whether in hard copy or electronic format) deemed relevant for the investigation/audit, and making copies thereof as relevant; interviewing staff and other relevant individuals; performing physical inspections and site visits; and obtaining third party verification of information.

Section IX - Special Conditions of Contract

Number of GC Clause	Amendments of, and Supplements to, Clauses in the General Conditions of Contract		
1.1	The words "in the Government's country" are amended to read in Sri Lanka		
1.1(e)	The contract name is Selection of service provider for production of 5 short video clips for the promotion of primary healthcare reorganizing activities.		
1.1(h)	The Employer is Primary Healthcare System Strengthening Project		
1.2	The governing law shall be the law of Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka		
1.3	The language is <i>English</i>		
1.4	The addresses are:		
	Employer: Primary Healthcare System Strengthening Project		
	Attention: The Project Director		
	Address: 3 rd Floor, J.R. Jayewardene Center, 191, Dharmapala Mawatha, Colombo 07, Sri Lanka		
	Telephone: 011-2690480 / 0112690549		
	Facsimile number: 011-2690480		
	Electronic mail address: psspmoh.lk@gmail.com		
	Service Provider:		
	Attention:		
	Telex:		
	Facsimile:		
1.6	The Authorized Representatives are:		
	For the Employer: The Project Director, Primary Healthcare System Strengthening Project		
	For the Service Provider:		

2.2.2	The Starting Date for the commencement of Services is immediate after the acceptance of the award.
2.3	The Intended Completion Date is within 30 days from the acceptance of the award.
3.7	Restrictions on the use of documents prepared by the Service Provider are:
	• The Ministry of Health will have the ownership over any Intellectual Property developed for or derived from this service.
	• The service provider SHALL NOT USE copyright protected content for this service.
	• Final products are required to be handed over to the Ministry of Health on completion of the service.
3.8.1	The liquidated damages rate is 1.0 per week
	The maximum amount of liquidated damages for the whole contract is 10 percent of the final Contract Price.
3.9	A Performance Security shall be required.
	The Amount of the Performance Security shall be
	Performance Security shall be;
	 The amount of the Security is 10% of the Contract Price. Validity period of the Performance Security should be 28 days beyond the Contract Completion Date.
	 Addressed to The Project Director, Primary Healthcare System Strengthening Project, 3rd Floor, J.R. Jayewardene Center, 191, Dharmapala Mawatha, Colombo 07, Sri Lanka
	Issued by a commercial bank acceptable to the central Bank of Sri Lanka.
	Other Securities are not accepted.
5.1	The assistance and exemptions provided to the Service Provider are:
	• Provide meeting facilities, coordination whenever necessary
6.2(a)	The amount in local currency is Sri Lankan Rupees.
6.3.2	The performance incentive paid to the Service Provider shall be: None
6.4	Payments shall be made according to the following schedule:

	Item No	Activity / Deliverable	Payment Term	
	1	Signing of contract	10%	
	2	Submission of a draft film developed before editing and finalizing	0%	
	3	Submission of the final product after completion and accepted by the Employer	90%	

Section X - Contract Forms

Table of Forms

Selection of service provider for production of 5 short video clips for the promotion of primary healthcare reorganizing activities	
REQUEST FOR BIDS	1
Part I – Bidding Procedures	1
Section I - Instructions to Bidders	3
Section II - Bid Data Sheet (BDS)	29
Refer Section III - Evaluation and Qualification Criteria	31
Section III - Evaluation and Qualification Criteria	33
Section IV- Bidding Forms	35
Letter of Bid	36
Bidder Information Form	38
Schedule Forms	39
Activity Schedule	41
Method Statement	42
Work Plan	43
Others - Time Schedule Error! Bookmark not def	ined.
Form of Bid-Securing Declaration	44
Section V - Eligible Countries	45
Section VI - Fraud and Corruption	47
Part II – Employer's Requirement	49

Part III - Conditions of Contract and Contract Forms .54 Section VIII - General Conditions of Contract .55 A. General Provisions .57 1.1 Definitions. .57 1.2 Applicable Law .58 1.3 Language .58 1.4 Notices .58 1.5 Location .59 1.6 Authorized Representatives .59 1.7 Inspection and Audit by the Bank .59 1.8 Taxes and Duties .59 2.1 Effectiveness of Contract .59 2.3 Intended Completion Modification, and Termination of Contract .59 2.4 Modification .60 .61 2.5 Force Majeure .61 .62 3< Intended Completion Date .63 .61 2.6 Termination .62 .63 3.1 General .63 .63 3.2 Conflict of Interests. .63 .63 3.3 Confliction Security .64 .64 3.4 Insurace to be Taken Out	Section V	/II - Activity Schedule	50
A. General Provisions571.1Definitions571.2Applicable Law581.3Language581.4Notices581.4Notices591.6Authorized Representatives591.7Inspection and Audit by the Bank591.8Taxes and Duties592. Commencement, Completion, Modification, and Termination of Contract592.1Effectiveness of Contract592.3Intended Completion Date602.4Modification602.4Modification602.5Force Majeure612.6Termination623. Obligations of the Service Provider633.1General633.2Conflict of Interests633.3Conflict of Interests633.4Insurance to be Taken Out by the Service Provider service for Approval643.6Reporting Obligations653.7Documents Prepared by the Service Provider to Be the Property of the Employer3.8Liquidated Damages653.9Performance Security663.10 Fraud and Corruption663.11 Sustainable Procurement664.12 Service Provider's Personnel664.13 Liquidated Damages653.9Performance Security663.10 Fraud and Corruption663.11 Sustainable Procurement664.13 Liquidated Damages65	Part III –	- Conditions of Contract and Contract Forms	54
1.1 Definitions	Section V	/III - General Conditions of Contract	55
1.2 Applicable Law 58 1.3 Language 58 1.4 Notices 58 1.5 Location 59 1.6 Authorized Representatives 59 1.7 Inspection and Audit by the Bank 59 1.8 Taxes and Duties 59 2. Commencement, Completion, Modification, and Termination of Contract 59 2.1 Effectiveness of Contract 59 2.3 Intended Completion Date 60 2.4 Modification 60 2.5 Force Majeure 61 2.6 Termination 62 3. Obligations of the Service Provider 63 3.1 General 63 3.2 Conflict of Interests 63 3.3 Confidentiality 64 3.4 Insurance to be Taken Out by the Service Provider 64 3.5 Service Provider's Actions Requiring Employer's Prior Approval 64 3.6 Reporting Obligations 65 3.7 Documents Prepared by the Service Provider to Be the Property of the Employer <tr< th=""><th>A.</th><th>General Provisions</th><th>57</th></tr<>	A.	General Provisions	57
1.2 Applicable Law 58 1.3 Language 58 1.4 Notices 58 1.5 Location 59 1.6 Authorized Representatives 59 1.7 Inspection and Audit by the Bank 59 1.8 Taxes and Duties 59 2. Commencement, Completion, Modification, and Termination of Contract 59 2.1 Effectiveness of Contract 59 2.3 Intended Completion Date 60 2.4 Modification 60 2.5 Force Majeure 61 2.6 Termination 62 3. Obligations of the Service Provider 63 3.1 General 63 3.2 Conflict of Interests 63 3.3 Confidentiality 64 3.4 Insurance to be Taken Out by the Service Provider 64 3.5 Service Provider's Actions Requiring Employer's Prior Approval 64 3.6 Reporting Obligations 65 3.7 Documents Prepared by the Service Provider to Be the Property of the Employer <tr< td=""><td>1.1</td><td>Definitions</td><td>57</td></tr<>	1.1	Definitions	57
1.3 Language 58 1.4 Notices 58 1.5 Location 59 1.6 Authorized Representatives 59 1.7 Inspection and Audit by the Bank 59 1.8 Taxes and Duties 59 2. Commencement, Completion, Modification, and Termination of Contract 59 2.1 Effectiveness of Contract 59 2.3 Intended Completion Date 60 2.4 Modification 60 2.4 Modification 60 2.5 Force Majeure 61 2.6 Termination 62 3. Obligations of the Service Provider 63 3.1 General 63 3.2 Conflict of Interests 63 3.3 Confidentiality 64 3.4 Insurance to be Taken Out by the Service Provider 64 3.6 Reporting Obligations 65 3.7 Documents Prepared by the Service Provider to Be the Property of the Employer 3.8 Liquidated Damages 65 3.9 Performance Security			
1.4 Notices 58 1.5 Location 59 1.6 Authorized Representatives 59 1.7 Inspection and Audit by the Bank 59 1.8 Taxes and Duties 59 2. Commencement, Completion, Modification, and Termination of Contract 59 2.1 Effectiveness of Contract 59 2.3 Intended Completion Date 60 2.4 Modification 60 2.5 Force Majeure 61 2.6 Termination 62 3. Obligations of the Service Provider 63 3.1 General 63 3.2 Conflict of Interests 63 3.3 Conflict of Interests 63 3.4 Insurance to be Taken Out by the Service Provider 64 3.5 Service Provider's Actions Requiring Employer's Prior Approval 64 3.6 Reporting Obligations 65 3.7 Documents Prepared by the Service Provider to Be the Property of the Employer 65 3.8 Liquidated Damages 65 3.9 Performance Security		11	
1.6 Authorized Representatives 59 1.7 Inspection and Audit by the Bank 59 1.8 Taxes and Duties 59 2. Commencement, Completion, Modification, and Termination of Contract 59 2.1 Effectiveness of Contract 59 2.3 Intended Completion Date 60 2.4 Modification 60 2.4 Ndoification 60 2.5 Force Majeure 61 2.6 Termination 62 3. Obligations of the Service Provider 63 3.1 General 63 3.2 Conflict of Interests 63 3.3 Conflict of Interests 63 3.4 Insurance to be Taken Out by the Service Provider 64 3.6 Reporting Obligations 65 3.7 Documents Prepared by the Service Provider to Be the Property of the Employer 65 3.8 Liquidated Damages 65 3.9 Performance Security 66 3.10 Fraud and Corruption 66 3.10 Fraud and Corruption 66 <	. –	6 6	
1.7 Inspection and Audit by the Bank 59 1.8 Taxes and Duties 59 2. Commencement, Completion, Modification, and Termination of Contract 59 2.1 Effectiveness of Contract 59 2.3 Intended Completion Date 60 2.4 Modification 60 2.4 Modification 60 2.5 Force Majeure 61 2.6 Termination 62 3. Obligations of the Service Provider 63 3.1 General 63 3.2 Conflict of Interests 63 3.3 Conflict of Interests 63 3.4 Insurance to be Taken Out by the Service Provider 64 3.5 Service Provider's Actions Requiring Employer's Prior Approval 64 3.6 Reporting Obligations 65 3.7 Documents Prepared by the Service Provider to Be the Property of the Employer 65 3.8 Liquidated Damages 65 3.9 Performance Security 66 3.10 Fraud and Corruption 66 3.11 Sustainable Procurement 66 </td <td>1.5</td> <td></td> <td></td>	1.5		
1.7 Inspection and Audit by the Bank 59 1.8 Taxes and Duties 59 2. Commencement, Completion, Modification, and Termination of Contract 59 2.1 Effectiveness of Contract 59 2.3 Intended Completion Date 60 2.4 Modification 60 2.4 Modification 60 2.5 Force Majeure 61 2.6 Termination 62 3. Obligations of the Service Provider 63 3.1 General 63 3.2 Conflict of Interests 63 3.3 Conflict of Interests 63 3.4 Insurance to be Taken Out by the Service Provider 64 3.5 Service Provider's Actions Requiring Employer's Prior Approval 64 3.6 Reporting Obligations 65 3.7 Documents Prepared by the Service Provider to Be the Property of the Employer 65 3.8 Liquidated Damages 65 3.9 Performance Security 66 3.10 Fraud and Corruption 66 3.11 Sustainable Procurement 66 </td <td>1.6</td> <td>Authorized Representatives</td> <td> 59</td>	1.6	Authorized Representatives	59
2. Commencement, Completion, Modification, and Termination of Contract	1.7	±	
2.1 Effectiveness of Contract 59 2.3 Intended Completion Date 60 2.4 Modification 60 2.4 Modification 60 2.5 Force Majeure 61 2.6 Termination 62 3. Obligations of the Service Provider 63 3.1 General 63 3.2 Conflict of Interests 63 3.3 Confidentiality 64 3.4 Insurance to be Taken Out by the Service Provider 64 3.5 Service Provider's Actions Requiring Employer's Prior Approval 64 3.6 Reporting Obligations 65 3.7 Documents Prepared by the Service Provider to Be the Property of the Employer 65 3.8 Liquidated Damages 65 3.9 Performance Security 66 3.10 Fraud and Corruption 66 3.11 Sustainable Procurement 66 4.1 Description of Personnel 66 4.2 Removal and/or Replacement of Personnel 66 4.1 Description of the Employer 67 </td <td>1.8</td> <td>Taxes and Duties</td> <td> 59</td>	1.8	Taxes and Duties	59
2.3Intended Completion Date602.4Modification602.4.1 Value Engineering602.5Force Majeure612.6Termination623. Obligations of the Service Provider633.1General633.2Conflict of Interests633.3Confidentiality643.4Insurance to be Taken Out by the Service Provider643.5Service Provider's Actions Requiring Employer's Prior Approval643.6Reporting Obligations653.7Documents Prepared by the Service Provider to Be the Property of the Employer653.8Liquidated Damages653.9Performance Security663.10Fraud and Corruption664.1Description of Personnel664.2Removal and/or Replacement of Personnel664.2Removal and/or Replacement of Personnel665.1Assistance and Exemptions675.2Change in the Applicable Law67	2.	Commencement, Completion, Modification, and Termination of Contract	xt59
2.4Modification602.4.1 Value Engineering602.5Force Majeure612.6Termination623. Obligations of the Service Provider633.1General633.2Conflict of Interests633.3Confidentiality643.4Insurance to be Taken Out by the Service Provider643.5Service Provider's Actions Requiring Employer's Prior Approval643.6Reporting Obligations653.7Documents Prepared by the Service Provider to Be the Property of the Employer653.8Liquidated Damages653.9Performance Security663.10Fraud and Corruption663.11Sustainable Procurement664.Service Provider's Personnel664.Service Provider's Personnel664.Service Provider's Personnel664.Service Provider's Personnel665.Obligations of the Employer675.1Assistance and Exemptions675.2Change in the Applicable Law67	2.1	Effectiveness of Contract	
2.4Modification602.4.1 Value Engineering602.5Force Majeure612.6Termination623. Obligations of the Service Provider633.1General633.2Conflict of Interests633.3Confidentiality643.4Insurance to be Taken Out by the Service Provider643.5Service Provider's Actions Requiring Employer's Prior Approval643.6Reporting Obligations653.7Documents Prepared by the Service Provider to Be the Property of the Employer653.8Liquidated Damages653.9Performance Security663.10Fraud and Corruption663.11Sustainable Procurement664.Service Provider's Personnel664.Service Provider's Personnel664.Service Provider's Personnel664.Service Provider's Personnel665.Obligations of the Employer675.1Assistance and Exemptions675.2Change in the Applicable Law67	2.3		
2.4.1 Value Engineering 60 2.5 Force Majeure 61 2.6 Termination 62 3. Obligations of the Service Provider 63 3.1 General 63 3.2 Conflict of Interests 63 3.3 Confidentiality 64 3.4 Insurance to be Taken Out by the Service Provider 64 3.5 Service Provider's Actions Requiring Employer's Prior Approval 64 3.6 Reporting Obligations 65 3.7 Documents Prepared by the Service Provider to Be the Property of the Employer	2.4		
2.5 Force Majeure 61 2.6 Termination 62 3. Obligations of the Service Provider 63 3.1 General 63 3.2 Conflict of Interests 63 3.3 Confidentiality 64 3.4 Insurance to be Taken Out by the Service Provider 64 3.5 Service Provider's Actions Requiring Employer's Prior Approval 64 3.6 Reporting Obligations 65 3.7 Documents Prepared by the Service Provider to Be the Property of the Employer 65 3.8 Liquidated Damages 65 3.9 Performance Security 66 3.10 Fraud and Corruption 66 3.11 Sustainable Procurement 66 4.1 Description of Personnel 66 4.2 Removal and/or Replacement of Personnel 66 4.2 Removal and/or Replacement of Personnel 67 5.1 Assistance and Exemptions 67 5.2 Change in the Applicable Law 67	2.4.1		
3. Obligations of the Service Provider			
3.1 General 63 3.2 Conflict of Interests 63 3.3 Confidentiality 64 3.4 Insurance to be Taken Out by the Service Provider 64 3.5 Service Provider's Actions Requiring Employer's Prior Approval 64 3.6 Reporting Obligations 65 3.7 Documents Prepared by the Service Provider to Be the Property of the Employer 65 3.8 Liquidated Damages 65 3.9 Performance Security 66 3.10 Fraud and Corruption 66 3.11 Sustainable Procurement 66 4.1 Description of Personnel 66 4.2 Removal and/or Replacement of Personnel 66 4.1 Descriptions of the Employer 67 5.1 Assistance and Exemptions 67 5.2 Change in the Applicable Law 67	2.6	Termination	
3.2Conflict of Interests.633.3Confidentiality643.4Insurance to be Taken Out by the Service Provider643.5Service Provider's Actions Requiring Employer's Prior Approval.643.6Reporting Obligations653.7Documents Prepared by the Service Provider to Be the Property of the Employer	3.	Obligations of the Service Provider	63
3.2Conflict of Interests.633.3Confidentiality643.4Insurance to be Taken Out by the Service Provider643.5Service Provider's Actions Requiring Employer's Prior Approval.643.6Reporting Obligations653.7Documents Prepared by the Service Provider to Be the Property of the Employer	3.1	General	
3.3Confidentiality643.4Insurance to be Taken Out by the Service Provider643.5Service Provider's Actions Requiring Employer's Prior Approval643.6Reporting Obligations653.7Documents Prepared by the Service Provider to Be the Property of the Employer			
3.4Insurance to be Taken Out by the Service Provider643.5Service Provider's Actions Requiring Employer's Prior Approval643.6Reporting Obligations653.7Documents Prepared by the Service Provider to Be the Property of the Employer653.8Liquidated Damages653.9Performance Security663.10Fraud and Corruption663.11Sustainable Procurement664.Service Provider's Personnel664.1Description of Personnel664.2Removal and/or Replacement of Personnel665.Obligations of the Employer675.1Assistance and Exemptions675.2Change in the Applicable Law67			
3.5 Service Provider's Actions Requiring Employer's Prior Approval		•	
3.6 Reporting Obligations 65 3.7 Documents Prepared by the Service Provider to Be the Property of the Employer			
3.7 Documents Prepared by the Service Provider to Be the Property of the Employer	3.6		
3.8Liquidated Damages653.9Performance Security663.10Fraud and Corruption663.11Sustainable Procurement664.Service Provider's Personnel664.1Description of Personnel664.2Removal and/or Replacement of Personnel665.Obligations of the Employer675.1Assistance and Exemptions675.2Change in the Applicable Law67	3.7	Documents Prepared by the Service Provider to Be the Property of t	he Employer
3.9 Performance Security	28		
3.10 Fraud and Corruption663.11 Sustainable Procurement664. Service Provider's Personnel664.1 Description of Personnel664.2 Removal and/or Replacement of Personnel665. Obligations of the Employer675.1 Assistance and Exemptions675.2 Change in the Applicable Law67			
3.11 Sustainable Procurement 66 4. Service Provider's Personnel 66 4.1 Description of Personnel 66 4.2 Removal and/or Replacement of Personnel 66 5. Obligations of the Employer 67 5.1 Assistance and Exemptions 67 5.2 Change in the Applicable Law 67			
 4. Service Provider's Personnel		1	
 4.1 Description of Personnel			
 4.2 Removal and/or Replacement of Personnel			
 5. Obligations of the Employer			
 5.1 Assistance and Exemptions			
5.2 Change in the Applicable Law			

6.	Payments to the Service Provider	67
6.1	Lump-Sum Remuneration	67
6.2	Contract Price	67
6.3	Payment for Additional Services, and Performance Incentive Co	ompensation 67
6.4	Terms and Conditions of Payment	68
6.5	Interest on Delayed Payments	68
6.6	Price Adjustment	
6.7	Dayworks	69
7.	Quality Control	69
7.1	Identifying Defects	69
7.2	Correction of Defects, and	
8.	Settlement of Disputes	70
8.1	Amicable Settlement	
8.2	Dispute Settlement	
Section I	X - Special Conditions of Contract	73
Section X	- Contract Forms	76
Та	ble of Forms	76
Form of (Contract	79

Form of Contract

[letterhead paper of the Employer]

LUMP-SUM REMUNERATION

This CONTRACT (hereinafter called the "Contract") is made the [day] day of the month of [month], [year], between, on the one hand, [name of Employer] (hereinafter called the "Employer") and, on the other hand, [name of Service Provider] (hereinafter called the "Service Provider").

[Note: In the text below text in brackets is optional; all notes should be deleted in final text. If the Service Provider consist of more than one entity, the above should be partially amended to read as follows: "...(hereinafter called the "Employer") and, on the other hand, a joint venture consisting of the following entities, each of which will be jointly and severally liable to the Employer for all the Service Provider's obligations under this Contract, namely, [name of Service Provider] (hereinafter called the "Service Provider").]

WHEREAS

- (a) the Employer has requested the Service Provider to provide certain Services as defined in the General Conditions of Contract attached to this Contract (hereinafter called the "Services");
- (b) the Service Provider, having represented to the Employer that they have the required professional skills, and personnel and technical resources, have agreed to provide the Services on the terms and conditions set forth in this Contract at a contract price of......;
- (c) the Employer has received [*or* has applied for] a loan from the International Bank for Reconstruction and Development (hereinafter called the "Bank") [*or* a credit from the International Development Association (hereinafter called the "Association")] towards the cost of the Services and intends to apply a portion of the proceeds of this loan [*or* credit] to eligible payments under this Contract, it being understood (i) that payments by the Bank [*or* Association] will be made only at the request of the Employer and upon approval by the Bank [*or* Association], (ii) that such payments will be subject, in all respects, to the terms and conditions of the agreement providing for the loan [*or* credit], and (iii) that no party other than the Employer shall derive any rights from the agreement providing for the loan [*or* credit] proceeds;

NOW THEREFORE the parties hereto hereby agree as follows:

1. The following documents shall be deemed to form and be read and construed as part of this Agreement, and the priority of the documents shall be as follows:

- (a) the Letter of Acceptance;
- (b) the Service Provider's Bid

- (c) the Special Conditions of Contract;
- (d) the General Conditions of Contract;
- (e) the Specifications;
- (f) the Priced Activity Schedule;
- 2. The mutual rights and obligations of the Employer and the Service Provider shall be as set forth in the Contract, in particular:
 - (a) the Service Provider shall carry out the Services in accordance with the provisions of the Contract; and
 - (b) the Employer shall make payments to the Service Provider in accordance with the provisions of the Contract.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this Contract to be signed in their respective names as of the day and year first above written.

For and on behalf of [name of Employer]

[Authorized Representative]

For and on behalf of [name of Service Provider]

[Authorized Representative]

[*Note*: If the Service Provider consists of more than one entity, all these entities should appear as signatories, e.g., in the following manner:]

For and on behalf of each of the Members of the Service Provider

[name of member]

[Authorized Representative]